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~ Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, Chairman
_ MR/NERETE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the
“Board”) of Universe International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | hereby present the 2009/2010 annual results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 30th June 2010 (2009: nil).
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Operating Results

During the year under review, the Group continued to operate
under the unfavourable market environment. For the year ended
30th June 2010, although the revenue of the Group increased
by 32.7% over the same period last year to HK$119.1 million,
the loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company
widened by 52.1% from HK$9.7 million to HK$14.8 million.
Gross profit margin decreased to 11.6% from 30.8% in the
same period last year. Loss per share for the year was HK0.91
cent compared to HKO.6 cent in 2009.

Despite recording a gain on disposal of an investment property
of HK$4.4 million, this gain was fully offset by the decrease in
the gross profit of the Group during the year. The main reasons
behind the gross profit margin decline were the rising film
production and promotional costs in the midst of intense market
competition within the film industry. Notwithstanding that the
global economy continued to recover, it has been observed
that customers are still very cautious in their acquisition of
film rights and large spending on promotional activities by the
Group has been necessary. This caused the gross profit margin
to decline and the gross profit from the film exhibition, licensing
and sub-licensing of film rights was lowered by 47.4% over
the previous year.
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During the year, the video distribution segment also
experienced decline in the revenue and gross profit as the local
video markets continued to be hindered by adverse operating
environment.

Notwithstanding the less than satisfactory results, we saw
encouraging growth in the Mainland China market during the
year under review. Sales to Mainland China rose by HK$18.3
million to HK$35.3 million, representing 29.6% of the Group's
consolidated revenue for the year. This was attributable to the
strong economy and huge demand for the Chinese-language
films and television series in the Mainland China, which is
expected to maintain its growth momentum in the coming
years.

Looking ahead, the overall operating environment is expected
to remain competitive and challenging, the Group will prudently
continue to enhance its film production in different varieties to
cope with the future challenges and uncertainties. In view of
the increased popularity of three dimensional films (“3D
Film(s)"), the management will consider to allocate more
resources in the investment in the production of 3D Films in
order to capture such business opportunity. In this respect,
the Group has released its debut 3D Film, namely “The Child's

Eve” ([ZHR ) starring Rainie Yang and Elanne Kwong, in
October 2010.
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Chairman’s Statement - Ji§ 45

Appreciation

Our executive Director, Ms Chiu Suet Ying, resigned on
16th August 2010. | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to her for her contributions to the Group.

Last but not least, | would also like to take this opportunity to
express my most sincere thanks and gratitude to my fellow
directors and our staff for their dedication and contribution to
the Group in the past year. | would also like to thank all our
customers and our shareholders for their continued support.

By Order of the Board
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19th October 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B DL i S o0 A

Business Review

Video Distribution

During the year under review, revenue from the video
distribution segment recorded a decline in revenue of 18.5%
from last year's HK$24.3 million to the current year's HK$19.8
million. This business segment contributed 16.6% (2009:
27.1%) of the Group’s consolidated revenue. Such decrease
was mainly due to the continued sluggish video distribution
market in Hong Kong.

The year under review was full of challenges for the video
distribution business. The Group has been facing with a
stagnant local video distribution market aggravated by weak
consumer sentiment and spending as a result of illegal
distribution of copyrighted film on the internet through peer
to-peer file sharing activities. In addition, the operating
environment was adversely affected by severe price
competition persisted in the market. Consequently, the gross
profit of this segment declined by HK$7.7 million to HK$1.7
million, compared with HK$9.4 million recorded in the same
period last year.
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In view of such difficult operating environment, the Group has
continued with the strategies of streamlining its cost structure
and adopting a prudent approach in respect of acquisitions of
new titles for local video distribution.

During the year under review, revenue from this business
segment was HK$94.5 million, representing a significant
increase of 50.8% over the same period last year. It contributed
t0 79.3% (2009: 69.8%) of the Group's total revenue. The
substantial increase in revenue was mainly driven by more self-
produced films being completed and released during the year,
in particular, “The Storm Warriors” ([[E2£11]). Notwithstanding
higher revenue, the gross profit for this business segment has
however dropped by 47.4% to HK$8.2 million due to the
increased film production and promotional costs.

Revenue from film exhibition business was HK$12.8 million,
representing an increase of HK$5.6 million over the same
period last year. Notwithstanding the increase in revenue from
film exhibition, gross profit margin was impacted by higher
promotional cost incidental to films released and the continual
contraction of local Chinese language film exhibition market.
Consequently, the operating loss of film exhibition slightly
widened from HK$2.1 million to HK$2.7 million compared to
the same period last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & ¥

Revenue from licensing and sub-licensing of film rights rose
by 47.5% to HK$81.7 million over the same period last year,
representing 68.6% of the Group's total revenue. Gross profit
has however declined by 38.2% to HK$10.9 million from
HK$17.7 million as the uncertain film market environment
affected licensees’ confidence and appetite. Compared with
this year, the gross profit margin last year was higher as there
was higher proportion of licensing and sub-licensing of non-
newly released films which had been fully amortized in the
previous years.

In terms of geographical distribution, contribution of overseas
markets accounted for 51.4% (2009: 29.7%) of the Group's
total revenue during the year under review. In particular, there
has been satisfactory development in the sales performance
of the Mainland China market. It is the Group's strategy to
continue to develop this market where demand for both
television series and films is growing rapidly. Revenue from
the Mainland China market rose by HK$16.7 million to HK$33.0
million, accounting 27.7% of the Group's total revenue.

Leasing of Investment Properties

On 15th September 2009, the Group completed the disposal
of an investment property at a consideration of HK$28.0 million.
This property has been vacant since the expiry of its relevant
tenancy agreement in November 2008 until the date of the
disposal. Following the above disposal, the remaining
investment property of the Group is a car parking space which
is currently vacant. In respect of property investment, the
management will continue to review and evaluate potential
investment opportunities in the property market that would
offer stable and satisfactory returns.
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Outlook

The Group expects the outlook for the coming fiscal year to
remain uncertain, pressure on revenue and gross profit margin
will persist. In view of such challenging circumstances, the
management will closely evaluate the overall business
environment and will adjust its pace of development
accordingly.

The management continues to hold an optimistic but cautious
outlook toward the growth of the Mainland China market, which
is one of the fastest growing emerging economies in the world.
To take advantage of this positive trend, the Group will continue
to devote more resources and efforts on development of the
Mainland China market. Meanwhile, the Group will continue
to control stringently its cost at all levels and streamline its
operation to enhance efficiency. The management is confident
that the Group can overcome the challenges ahead.

Financial Resources/Liquidity and
Capital Structure

The Group's financial position remained strong. As at 30th June
2010, the Group had cash balances of HK$120.3 million (2009:
HK$116.6 million).

As at 30th June 2010, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$325.5 million, representing a decrease of
HK$25.5 million over that of 30th June 2009.

The Group's gearing ratio as at 30th June 2010 was
approximately 0.1% (2009: 0.1%), which was calculated on
the basis of the Group's long term borrowings of approximately
HK$151,000 (of which HK$80,000 and HK$71,000 are
repayable within one year and in the second year respectively)
and on the total equity of the Company of approximately
HK$280.9 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & ¥ J& &1 5 5 4

There was no finance costs incurred for the year ended 30th
June 2010 (2009: same).

In light of the fact that most of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars,
the management considers the Group’s exposure to
fluctuations in exchange rates to be limited and thus no financial
instruments for hedging purposes are used by the Group.

The Pledge of Group’s Assets

As at 30th June 2010, the Group did not have any pledged
assets (2009: same).

Employees and Remuneration
Policies

As at 30th June 2010, the Group employed 59 staff (2009: 55).
Remuneration is reviewed annually and certain staff are entitled
to commission. In addition to basic salaries, staff benefits
included discretionary bonus, medical insurance scheme and
mandatory provident fund.

@i iiﬂﬂ +E¢¢FW’ﬁﬁ%%
ﬁﬁi$§t|j(_; ZNE - R

AAREEABNORXZHNEERETHEE - HE
BERRAEEINERDERARE I AEEL
ERAEAM BT A HIMNER R -

EEEEHRR

R-Z-ZFRA=1H AEBYEEFNDE
HEE(CZEZNSF : HR) -

EERFMER

Z-TFRA=TH  FAEEEMIE (=

ZNF 1 65%)EE - BEZFHEEFM®
W HPBOBETAEAERAE - KEAFE
Sh - BEBFMBREBBEL - BERRAER

L]
1
T
1
L
]
"

12 UNIVERSE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010



Management Discussion and Analysis & & &) & [ 70 #r

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual general
meeting held on 26th November 2003, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) in compliance with Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual general
meeting held on 23rd November 2007 (the “2007 AGM"), the
Company approved the refreshment of the scheme mandate
limit, which is 10% of the total number of issue shares of the
Company as at the date of the 2007 AGM, under the Scheme.
After the refreshment of the scheme mandate limit, the total
number of share options available for issue under the Scheme
as at 30th June 2010 was 162,460,537 the full exercise of which
in subscribing for shares of the Company would represented
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 30th
June 2010.

There was no share options outstanding and granted
throughout the year ended 30th June 2010.

B REET &

BRER_ZT=F+—-HA -+ RHBTZRRE
FAE LBBZ AL BRESR * AQRRES
BBMAERZMABRARES EMRR - BiEAH
R R — R T 8 ([RE ARt &8l1) -

BER-_ZTLE+—A_+=ZHETZRREA
FRE([ZZSLFRFBAFARE)) LBBZ —
B ERESR - AR A ER BT B 5
AEERELR T+ ERFBAFASEAR
ZEBITRMNEERZ10% - REHEHEIRE LR
2% RZTE—TFXNA=TAHZREBERET
B AR ITRE AR E B 22 5162,460,5371D © 7%
EE2ETERBARARMD 2 BRIEESERZ
E-FFANA=ZFTHARBZBEEITRGZ
10% °

BE_ZT-FTFA=THLFER  BEDKR
TR G 2 BRE -

ETERERERAA —2-2FFH 13



Directors and Senior Management Profile
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Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management

Executive Directors

Mr LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil, aged 48, is the founder and
Chairman of the Group. He is involved in marketing, corporate
strategy, business planning and development and overall
management of the Group. Mr Lam has 29 years of experience
in the film industry in Hong Kong. He was awarded the “Young
Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” by the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries in 2002.

Mr YEUNG Kim Piu, aged 49, is mainly responsible for
overseeing the operation of artiste management division.
Mr Yeung joined the Group in 1993 and has over 13 years of
experience in the film distribution industry in Hong Kong.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr NG Kwok Tung, aged 60, is a practising accountant. He holds
a Bachelor of Commerce degree and a licentiate in accountancy
from McGill University, Canada and a diploma in Chinese law
from the University of East Asia, Macau. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of British Columbia, the
Order of Chartered Accountants of Quebec, the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. He is also an independent non-executive director
of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited and a non-executive director
of Wah Ha Realty Company Limited, all of which are publicly
listed companies in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in May
1999.
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Dr LEUNG Shiu Ki, Albert, aged 61, is currently the Financial
and Business Development Consultant of Beauchamp
International Development Limited, which is a private company
incorporated in Hong Kong and is responsible for providing
financial and business development service to various
companies. Dr Leung has 10 years of experience in accounting
and auditing in accounting firms in England from 1977 to 1987
From 1987 to 1992, he joined Citicorp International Limited as
Assistant Vice President with a major responsibility in corporate
finance matters in Hong Kong. He holds a Doctor degree of
Philosophy in Economics from Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics, the People’s Republic of China, a Master
degree of Business Administration from Brunel University,
England and a Diploma in Management Studies from The
Polytechnic of Central London, England. Dr Leung has also
passed the final qualifying examinations of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, all in the United Kingdom. He
joined the Group in November 2008.

Mr MA Chun Fung, Horace, aged 40, specializes in internal
audit and business risk consulting. Mr Ma was a director and
head of the Hong Kong operations of an international
independent risk consulting firm from March 2004 to March
2007 The said firm provides business consultation services in
numerous fields including business operations and
management, information technology, financial management
and internal auditing and risk consulting and investigative
services. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing)
registered with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a Certified Internal Auditor registered
with the Institute of Internal Auditors and holder of Certification
in Control Self-Assessment of the Institute of Internal Auditors.
He also holds various degrees including Master of Science and
Bachelor of Business Administration conferred by the Chinese
University of Hong Kong and Bachelor of Laws conferred by
the University of London, England. In addition to being an
executive director of Fava International Holdings Limited, he
is also an independent non-executive director of Ming Fai
International Holdings Limited and Dejin Resources Group
Company Limited, all of which are publicly listed companies in
Hong Kong. He joined the Group in November 2008.
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Senior Management

Mr LAM Siu Keung, Alvin, aged 40, is the Chief Operation
Officer of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing the daily
operation of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in 2002, he
has over eight years of experience in finance and internal control
consulting for both Hong Kong and US listed companies in
Arthur Andersen. He earned his Bachelor of Accountancy at
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a fellow member
of both the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
the younger brother of Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil.

Mr CHAN Hau Chuen, aged 40, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Group. He is responsible for the
financial and accounting functions of the Group. Prior to joining
the Group in 1998, he has over six years of experience in finance
and accounting in an international accounting firm and a publicly
listed company in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to the establishment of a good
standard of corporate governance practices by emphasizing
transparency, accountability and responsibility to its all
shareholders.

Code on Corporate Governance
Practices

The Company has, throughout the year ended 30th June 2010,
complied with the Code Provisions on the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”) except for the code provision A.2.1 of the Code
for the separation of the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ") as described in the following.

The Company does not at present have any officer holding the
position of CEQ. Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil is the founder and
Chairman of the Company and has also carried out the
responsibilities of CEO. Mr Lam possesses the essential
leadership skills to manage the Board and extensive knowledge
in the business of the Group. The Board considers the present
structure to be more suitable to the Group because it can
promote the efficient formulation and implementation of the
Group's strategies.

The Board
Duties and Composition of the Board

The board of directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”) (the
“Board"”) is collectively responsible for the oversight of the
management of business, strategic decisions and financial
performance of the Group for the best interests of the
shareholders. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management power of the Group to the executive Directors
and the senior management of the Company. The Board reviews
its arrangement on delegation of responsibilities and authority
regularly to ensure that such delegations are appropriate in
view of the Group's prevailing circumstances.
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The following matters (including changes to any such matters)
are reserved for the approval of the Board:

(a) any matter determined by the Board to be material
involving any conflict of interest for a substantial
shareholder of the Company or a Director;

(b) any matter relating to the formulation of the Company's
strategies and directions including:

(i) policies relating to the overall strategic direction
and strategic plans of the Company;

(ii) policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company ;

(iii) policies relating to the declaration of dividend;
and

(iv) the entering into of contracts involving acquisitions,
investments, disposal of assets or any significant
capital expenditure which are deemed to be
material by the Board.

(c) financial controls, compliance and risk management:

(i) the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets for the Company;

(i) the approval of the Company’s financial statements
and published reports;

(iii) the establishment and review of the effectiveness
of the Company'’s systems of internal control and
risk management process; and

(iv) the adoption of, or approval for any significant
changes in, accounting policies or procedures of
the Company and its subsidiaries.
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changes to the Company’s capital structure, including

reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue of

new securities, other than in accordance with the terms

of the share option scheme(s) or other incentive

schemes adopted by the Company from time to time;

major appointments and removal:

appointments to the Board, taking into account any
recommendations of the Nomination Committee;

the appointment of the Chairman;

recommendation to the shareholders on the
appointment or removal of external auditors after
taking into consideration the recommendations
of the Audit Committee; and

the appointment or removal of the Company
Secretary.

delegation of authority:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

changes to terms of reference or membership
of any committee of the Board,

changes to the authority delegated to the Chairman
and the senior management; and

matters which exceed the authority delegated to
the Chairman and the senior management.

the adoption, review and approval of changes to the

Corporate Governance Practice Manual of the Company,

the Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions applicable

to the Directors and senior management of the Group.
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The Board currently comprises a total of five Directors, with
two executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The names and biographies of the Directors are set
out on pages 14 and 17 of this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors are all experienced
individuals, all of them have accounting professional
qualification. Their mix of professional skills and experience is
beneficial to the Board to formulate the long-term business
strategies and monitor the operational and financial matters of
the Group.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to cover the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

Appointment and Re-election

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee of the
Company or by shareholders in general meeting. Any Director
who is appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board shall retire at the next annual general meeting.

Currently, all independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for a specific term of three years. All Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least every three years
and re-election in accordance with the provision of the Listing
Rules and the bye-law(s) of the Company (the “Bye-laws"). At
least one-third of Directors shall retire from office every year
at the Company'’s annual general meeting.

Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert and Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace shall
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with 87(1) and 87(2) of
the Bye-laws and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.
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Board Meetings

Each year, the Board normally held four regular board meetings
at approximately quarterly interval. Five board meetings were
convened during the year ended 30th June 2010 and the
attendances of individual Directors at these meetings are set
out as follows:

Attendance

Executive Directors
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 5/5
Ms Chiu Suet Ying

(resigned on 16th August 2010) 5/5
Mr Yeung Kim Piu 5/5
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr Ng Kwok Tung 5/5
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert 5/5
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace 5/5

Board Committees

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and an Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

A Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference was established by the Company on 15th July 2005.
The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr Ma Chun
Fung, Horace (as Chairman), Mr Ng Kwok Tung and Dr Leung
Shiu Ki, Albert and an Executive Director, namely, Mr Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company's website.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Directors and senior management
and reviewing the specific remuneration package of all
executive Directors and senior management from time to time.
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The main principles of the Group's remuneration policies are:

(a) no Director should be involved in deciding his or her
own remuneration;

(b) remuneration should be determined by taking into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment, levels of
responsibilities, employment conditions elsewhere in
the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration; and

(c) performance-based remuneration should be reviewed
and approved by reference to corporate goal and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

Three committee meetings were convened during the year
ended 30th June 2010 and the attendances of each committee
member at these meetings are set out as follows:

Attendance

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace (Chairman) 3/3
Mr Ng Kwok Tung 3/3
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert 3/3
Executive Directors
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 3/3
Ms Chiu SuetYing

(resigned on 16th August 2010) 3/3

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and discussed the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. The
Committee has also approved the remuneration and the
discretionary bonuses of the executive Directors by reference
to their respective levels of responsibilities and performance,
industry benchmarks, prevailing market conditions and the
Group'’s financial performance and delegated the executive
Directors to determine and formulate the remuneration policy
for the senior management of the Group. No Director was
involved in deciding his or her own remuneration.
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Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference was established by the Company on 15th July 2005.
The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr Leung Shiu
Ki, Albert (as Chairman), Mr Ng Kwok Tung and Mr Ma Chun
Fung, Horace and an Executive Director, namely, Mr Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board on
a regular basis and making recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes.

A committee meeting was convened during the year ended
30th June 2010 and the attendance of each committee member
at this meeting is set out as follows:

Attendance

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert (Chairman) 1
Mr Ng Kwok Tung 11
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace N
Executive Directors
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 11
Ms Chiu SuetYing

(resigned on 16th August 2010) 11

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee on 11th October
1999. The written terms of reference which describe the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee were prepared
and adopted with reference to “"A Guide for Effective Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and in accordance with the Code. The Audit
Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr Ng Kwok Tung (as Chairman),
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert and Mr Ma Chung Fung, Horace. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the Company's website.
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The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of
external auditors, review of the Group’s financial information
and oversight of the Group's financial and accounting practices,
internal control and risk management. It is also responsible for
reviewing the interim and final results of the Group.

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30th June 2010 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

Three committee meetings were convened during the year
ended 30th June 2010 and the attendances of the each
committee member at these meetings are set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr Ng Kwok Tung (Chairman) 3/3
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert 3/3
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace 3/3

The Audit Committee has reviewed the terms of engagement
of the external auditors, the revised accounting standards, the
financial year 2009/2010 interim financial statements and annual
financial statements. The Audit Committee also reviewed the
internal control systems and met with the external auditors to
discuss with them the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligation prior to the commencement of and after
the completion of the audit.

Internal Control

The Directors have the overall responsibility for internal control
and sets appropriate policies. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's
system of internal control.

In compliance with the code provision C.2.1 of the Code and
to further improve the effectiveness of its internal control, the
Company engaged an independent accounting firm (the
"Consultant”) to conduct a review of the effectiveness of the
system control of the Group for the year ended 30th June 2010.
All findings for improvement and recommendations made by
the Consultant, which require management’s attention, have
been properly addressed and implemented by the Company
during the year.
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The system of internal control aims to help achieving the
Group's business objectives, effective and efficient operations,
safeguarding assets and maintaining proper accounting records
for provision of reliable financial information. The design of the
system is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement in the financial statement or
loss of assets and to manage rather than eliminate all risks of
failure in the Group's operational systems and in the
achievement of the Group's business objectives. No material
suspected frauds and irregularities, internal control deficiencies
or infringement of relevant regulations and rules have come to
the attention of Board to cause the Board to believe that the
system of internal control is inadequate.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial
Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 30th June 2010 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standard and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The statement of external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, about their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 41 and 42 of
this annual report.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the external auditor
of the Company by the shareholders at the last annual general
meeting of the Company. For the year ended 30th June 2010,
the remuneration payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers is set
out as follows:

BEET £

RARF 2z E—ERRBFAE  BEBKESR

FHEM =TSR R R ERAR AR Z INERZEED -
W ECT-TERAZTRALEFE  XNFES

BOKEEETEISHAZMENT -

Fees payable

Services rendered Fri2 it R %% ENSEHR
HK$'000

BT T

Audit services EiTEH 780
Non-audit services EETER 60
840

Model Code for Securities Transactions E=EETESXSNEE<FH|

by Directors

During the year ended 30th June 2010, the Company has
adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code") as the code for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiries, all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the year.
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Report of the Directors
PR EE

The board of directors (the “Director(s)) (the “Board"”) submit
their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of Universe International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for
the year ended 30th June 2010.

Principal Activities and Geographical
Analysis of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 46.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.
Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations of
HK$611,800 (2009: nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Principal Properties

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out on page 143.
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Share Capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 30th June 2010
amounted to HK$74,463,000 (2009: HK$74,328,000) including
contributed surplus of HK$51,852,000 (2009: HK$51,852,000),
which is only distributable subject to conditions as set out in
Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
144.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company's shares during the year.

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual general
meeting held on 26th November 2003, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). Details of the
Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant share options to selected Participants (as
defined below) as incentive and/or rewards for their
contribution and support to the Group and any invested
entity.
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(b) Participants of the Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any person

belonging to any of the following classes of participants

for their contribution and support to the Group and any

invested entity (the “Participants” and individually, a

"Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe for

shares.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

any full-time employee of the Company, any of
its subsidiary or any invested entity, including
(without limitation) any executive director of the
Company, any of its subsidiary or invested entity
(individually, an “Employee”);

any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any invested entity;

any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technical support to the
Group or any invested entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any
invested entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or
consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Group or any
invested entity; and

(b)

BRETENSEA

B HBABBNAMEMER - B
AREBEREMREERA BRI MIEL T
Z2BA([2HEA]) - FERNERIEAR
B -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)
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(c)

(d)

(viii) any joint venture partner or counter-party to
business operation or business arrangements of
the Group, and for the purposes of the Scheme,
the share options may be granted to any company
wholly owned by one or more persons belonging
to any of the above classes of the Participants.

Maximum Number of Share Options
Available for Issue under the Scheme

(i) The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share
option granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other schemes for the time
being of the Company shall not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time. Share
options lapsed or cancelled for the time being of
the Company shall not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the said 30% limit; and

(ii) The maximum number of share options available
for issue under the Scheme is 162,460,537
shares, representing 10% of the shares in issue
as at the date of the annual general meeting held
on 23rd November 2007 (the 2007 AGM"), in
which the shareholders approved the
refreshment of the scheme mandate limit.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

The total number of shares issued upon exercise of the
share options granted and to be granted to each grantee
under the Scheme and any other schemes for the time
being of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding share options) in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant to each grantee must not exceed
1% of the aggregate number of shares for the time
being in issue.
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(d)
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(e) Remaining Life and Exercisable Period
of the Share Options

There is no general requirement that a share option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the Board is empowered to impose at its
discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant
of any particular share option. A share option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period of 10 years commencing on
the Date of Grant and expiring on the last day of the
said 10-year period.

(f) Payment on Acceptance of the Share
Options Offer

A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on
acceptance of the share option offer.

(g) Basis of Determining the Subscription
Price

The subscription price for shares under the Scheme shall
be a price notified by the Board to a Participant to whom
any offer of the grant of a share option is made and
shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant which must be a business
day; and (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant, provided that the subscription price shall
not be lower than the nominal value of a share.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual general
meeting held on the 2007 AGM, the Company approved the
refreshment of the scheme mandate limit, which is 10% of
the total number of issue shares of the Company as at the
date of the 2007 AGM, under the Scheme. After the
refreshment of the scheme mandate limit, the total number of
share options available for issue under the Scheme as at
30th June 2010 was 162,460,537, the full exercise of which in
subscribing for shares of the Company would represent 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 30th June
2010.

There was no share options outstanding and granted
throughout the year ended 30th June 2010.
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman)

Ms CHIU SuetYing (resigned on 16th August 2010)
Mr YEUNG Kim Piu

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr NG Kwok Tung

Dr LEUNG Shiu Ki, Albert

Mr MA Chun Fung, Horace

Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert and Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace shall
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with 87(1) and 87(2) of
the bye-laws of the Company (the “"Bye-laws”) and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed
for a specific term and subject to retirement by rotation as
specified by the Bye-laws.

The Company has received from each of the above independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
is satisfied that they are independent as such.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance

Save as disclosed in Note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company, its holding company,
its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests in Equity or Debt Securities

As at 30th June 2010, the interests which are all long position
of each of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
in the share capital of the Company (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (“SFO")) which were required to be (a) notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest which any such
Director was taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or; (c)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (the “Model Code") were as follows:

Interests in Issued Shares

EERGEFERBNER
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Number of
the Company’s

shares held Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest FEA AT shareholding
EspA EEME RH#EE ERESHL
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Founder of a discretionary trust (Note) 872,406,705 53.70%

MONERSEAE —HERERZAIA (F)

Note: The trustee of the discretionary trust is Central Core Resources
Limited which owns the entire issued share capital of the

Globalcrest Enterprises Limited which in turn is interested in
872,406,705 shares of the Company.

All interests in the shares of the Company are long position.

it EEHEFL2 ZFEA BCentral Core Resources
Limited ° &% 23 6] # A Globalcrest Enterprises
Limited® &2 #7T7HR A - if1Globalcrest
Enterprises Limited8|## 5 78 22 5]1872,406,705
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2010, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short position in the share, underlying shares and debentures
or any of its associated corporations which were required to
be (a) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
which they were deemed or taken to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or (b) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code or (c) entered in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year, the
directors and chief executives of the Company (including their
spouse and children under 18 years of age) had any interest in,
or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for
shares (or warrants or debentures, if applicable) of the Company
and its associated corporations required to be disclosed
pursuant to the SFO.

In addition, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company, its subsidiaries, its associated company or
its fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold any
interests or short position in the shares or underlying shares
in or debentures of, the Company or its associated corporation.
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Substantial Shareholders

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 30th June 2010, shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were
as follows:

FERR

RARBEMESRETZTRABMAE - R
Z-ZFERA=TH BULEBEZEERAR
AIEETHABIN - RIEEF MG EPIZEXVED
FE2N3DEAMANRERE - HANARFIRE
H M EGRPIEI6IERERTF2ELMP A
% U NIRRT A AR BB AR 2 5F

A

B -

Number of

the Company’s Percentage of

Name of shareholders shares held shareholding
REREH FErRARRGEA ERESH
Globalcrest Enterprises Limited (Note) (%) 872,406,705 53.70%
Central Core Resources Limited (Note) (i) 872,406,705 53.70%

Note: The entire issued share capital of Globalcrest Enterprises
Limited is held by Central Core Resources Limited, the trustee
of a discretionary trust under which certain immediate family
members of Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil are discretionary
objects.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in
the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2010, no other person
has any interests or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration

of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws and there are no restrictions against such rights under
the laws in Bermuda.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 24.60%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 68.81%
Sales

— the largest customer 7.56%
— five largest customers in aggregate 30.17%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company'’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

Connected Transaction

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in Note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements also constituted
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, required to
be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The following transaction between a connected party
(as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company has been
entered into and/or are ongoing for which relevant
announcements, if necessary, had been made by the Company
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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On 19th December 2006, Universe Laser & Video Co. Limited,
("ULV"), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”)
with Rainbow Nice Limited (“RNL’) whereby ULV agreed to
lease premises (the “Premises”) from RNL for a term of 3 years
commencing from 1st January 2007 to 31st December 2009
for the use of Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Ms Chiu Suet
Ying, the latter was the Director until 16th August 2010, for
residential purpose. The monthly rental payable by ULV was
HK$200,000 which was inclusive of furniture, fixtures and home
electronic appliances but excluding government rent, rates,
taxes and all other outgoings.

On 26th August 2008, ULV entered into a supplemental
agreement with RNL whereby both parties mutually agreed to
reduce the monthly rental of the Premises from HK$200,000
to HK$100,000 for the remaining term commencing from 1st
September 2008 to 31st December 2009. The Premises was
solely leased for Ms Chiu Suet Ying for her residential purpose
with effect from 1st September 2008.

On 10th December 2009, Universe Digital Entertainment
Limited (“UDE"), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a renewed tenancy agreement (the
“Renewed Tenancy Agreement”) with RNL whereby UDE
agreed to lease the Premises from RNL for a term of 3 years
commencing from 1st January 2010 for the use of Ms Chiu
Suet Ying for residential purpose. The monthly rental payable
by UDE is HK$100,000 which is inclusive of furniture, fixtures
and home electronic appliances but excluding government rent,
rates, taxes and all other outgoings.

On 16th August 2010, UDE entered a deed of surrender with
RNL whereby both parties mutually agreed to terminate the
Renewed Tenancy Agreement with immediate effect.

The entire issued share capital of RNL, the landlord of the
Premises, is beneficially owned by Ms Chiu SuetYing. By virtue
of the interest of Ms Chiu SuetYing in RNL, the entering into
of the Tenancy Agreement and the Renewed Tenancy
Agreement constituted a continuing connected transaction for
the Company under 14A.14 of the Listing Rules respectively
(collectively, the “Continuing Connected Transactions”).
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As the Continuing Connected Transactions satisfied the
exemption under Rule 14A.32(2) of the Listing Rules, it was
only subject to the annual review requirement and reporting
and the announcement requirements set out in Rules 14A.37
to 14A.41 and 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules
respectively and was exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transaction and confirmed that the
transaction had been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (ii) either on normal
commercial terms or terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from independent third parties; and
(iii) in accordance with the Tenancy Agreement (as
supplemented) and the Renewed Tenancy Agreement
governing it on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The external auditor of the Company has also confirmed that
for the year ended 30th June 2010, the Continuing Connected
Transactions (i) had received the approval of the Board; and (ii)
had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing the transaction, and (iii) had
not exceeded the cap disclosed in the announcements dated
19th December 2006 and 10th December 2009 respectively.

Apart from the above, there are other related party transactions
entered into by the Group during the year ended 30th June
2010, certain of which constituted exempted connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules, the
details of these transactions are disclosed in Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company's
issued shares at 30th June 2010.
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Report of the Directors # 55 & ¥

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman
Hong Kong, 19th October 2010
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| ndependent Auditor’s Report

Y8 i Yl e

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

TS BOK R t 6P A T

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
UNIVERSE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Universe International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to
142, which comprise the consolidated and Company balance
sheets as at 30th June 2010, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
33rd Floor

Cheung Kong Center

2 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report 7 37 4% i # 4 &

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 30th June 2010 and of the Group's loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19th October 2010
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
A EEAER

As at 30th June 2010 R-E—FFA=1H
2010 2009
—E-EfF ZTTNF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=g BT T BT T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Leasehold land e+ 6 9,664 9,916
Property, plant and equipment Y2 - RN 7 11,636 12,671
Investment properties wEYZE 8 400 350
Other intangible asset HEihEREE 10 1,408 1,408
Film rights and films in progress BYMRERRER ZER 11 125,999 142,948
Film deposits B2 20,810 19,812
Deferred income tax assets EEFTIS T A B 26 940 2,553
Available-for-sale financial asset AHEENSREE 13 1,275 —
172,132 189,658
Current assets REBEE
Inventories & 16 3,364 5,023
Accounts receivable JiE U BR SR 15 12,314 5,765
Deposits paid, prepayments Bf&Ee - BNFIE
and other receivables K EL h B R IE 17,328 10,643
Other bank deposit H A RITFE 17 - 51,742
Cash and cash equivalents BeNREEEY 18 120,328 64,844
Non-current assets held for sale BIEREZIERBEE 9 - 23,345
153,334 161,362
Total assets BEE 325,466 351,020
EQUITY iz
Capital and reserves attributable A2 FERFH A
to the Company'’s equity holders  FE{GE AR &
Share capital [N 19 32,492 32,492
Share premium R 17 5 (B 21(a) 127,211 127,211
Other reserves Hth 21(a) 821 1,279
Retained earnings IR & F 120,407 134,617
Total equity MR 280,931 295,599

ETEBRERERAR —Z—2FFH 43




As at 30th June 2010 RZZE—ZFA=TH
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZEENF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T ST
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Other long-term liabilities HiRHBEE 25 71 151
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSHEE 26 884 2,307
955 2,458
Current liabilities nEEE
Accounts payable FE T BR X 23 3,134 3,826
Other payables and Hth JE R R
accrued charges FEETZ 6,871 13,346
Deposits received BlET £ 33,185 35,520
Amount due to the ultimate FEN SR ARIE IR R A
holding company SKIE 22 1 1
Obligations under finance leases BhE S AIE 24 80 80
Taxation payable FESFIE 309 190
43,580 52,963
Total liabilities wes 44,535 55,421
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 325,466 351,020
Net current assets RENEEFE 109,754 108,399
Total assets less current liabilities REERAEEE 281,886 298,057

On behalf of the Board

AEEgW

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Yeung Kim Piu
Director Director

b AN %8R

EE £

The notes on pages 49 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheet
B fEx

As at 30th June 2010

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M aE BET T BRI
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries W EARIKE 12 70,606 70,606
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISIHE E 26 321 348
70,927 70,954
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B /B R R FRIE 22 165,195 165,891
Prepayments and other receivables B 3k T8 & E b i UL 3% 129 146
Cash and cash equivalents REeRBSEEY 18 55 80
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 165379 166,11/
Total assets BWEE 236,306 237071
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable Z2AT#EHZFE A
to the Company’s equity holders  FE{EE AR
Share capital fi& 7% 19 32,492 32,492
Share premium f& 10w 8 21(b) 127,211 127211
Other reserves bk 21(b) 51,852 51,852
Retained earnings RE &R 22,611 22,476
Total equity ~ ®#%= 234,166 234,031
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEST B B R R FIE 22 625 1,408
Accrued charges FEEF X 1,515 1,632
Total liabilites ~ ®#&® 2140 3,040
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 236,306 237,071
Net current assets RBEEFE 163,239 163,077
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERRBEE 234,166 234,031
On behalf of the Board
EEEEW
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Yeung Kim Piu
Director Director
M/ B8l
E EE

The notes on pages 49 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

B A A W U 4 3R

For the year ended 30th June 2010 &EHZE T ZTFEA=THIFE

2010 2009
—E-EfF ZTENF
Note(s) HK$'000 HK$'000
B E BET T BT T
Revenue g 5 119,096 89,733
Cost of revenue W 2 B AN 27 (105,282) (62,088)
Selling expenses HEZE M 27 & 28 (2,569) (2,345)
Administrative expenses THER 27 & 28 (30,131) (27,167)
Other income E AU A 29 1,025 976
Other gains — net Efblas — F58 30 4,592 155
Gain on disposal of non-current HEFIELEZIERDEE
assets held for sale Z Yz 4,355 —
Increase/(decrease) in fair value of & &EWE 2 AFE
investment properties &/ O ) 8 50 (5,820)
Other operating expenses b B R 27 (5,783) (4,517)
Finance income B 31 288 2,575
Loss before income tax RR P18 5 A 5 18 (14,359) (8,498)
Income tax expense FriS%i& A 32 (400) (1,207)
Loss attributable to the equity PN X
holders of the Company BEAEMLEE (14,759) (9,705)
Other comprehensive income: Hb 2 HE W ¢
Gain recognized directly in equity ~ BERERERNEF 91 =
Total comprehensive loss KA F]
for the year attributable EREEAEWN
to the equity holders FE2HER
of the Company PR (14,668) (9,705)
Loss per share for loss attributable F£RZA A 7]
to the equity holders EREEAEWN
of the Company during the year EEZESRERE
(expressed in HK cent) (BUEAL ET)
— basic — ®EAR 85 (0.91) (0.60)
— diluted — 85 (0.91) (0.60)

The notes on pages 49 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30th June 2010

BE-T-FFAASTALTE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FAREREEAEL
Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total
Bx  RHOEE  EtREE  RERA ag
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wizt BETT  BETr A¥Tr  BETr BETx
Balance at 1st July 2008 W-EENELtR—RAzE&H% 32,492 127211 19,833 125,768 305,304
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year FEFR - — — (9,705) (9,705)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEZHEELE — — — (9,705) (9,705)
Transactions with owners BREEAZRS
Share-based compensation reserve  BIRIER HEL
transfer upon cancellation IR
of share options FrmEE = = (18,554) 18,554 —
Total transactions with owners BREBEAZRHER - — (18,554) 8,849 (9,705)
Balance at 30th June 2009 RZBENFAAZTRZER 32,492 127211 1,279 134,617 295,599
Balance at 1st July 2009 RIZENF+A-B2&E# 32,492 127211 1,279 134,617 295,599
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year FEFR - - - (14,759) (14,759)
Other comprehensive income Hth2El s
Revaluation reserve adjustment LERELE
upon disposal of non-current ZERBEEMES
assets held for sale LEBREAR 21 - - (458) 458 =
Deferred income tax adjustment ~ HER{EHE
upon disposal of non-current ZERBEEMES
assets held for sale ZEREREHAR 26 = = = 91 91
Total other comprehensive income ~ Efth 2 E M= 25 - - (458) 549 91
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEZEEBEE = = (458) (14,210) (14,668)
Balance at 30th June 2010 RIB-ZE A=TRZEH 32,492 127211 821 120,407 280,931

The notes on pages 49 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HABenER

For the year ended 30th June 2010 &EHZE T ZTFEA=THIFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & BETT BT T
Cash flows from operating activities ZEFE2HERE
Cash generated from operations EBEEECES 36 45,361 76,167
Cash flows from investing activities REFZE2HERE
Purchase of property, plant BAMZE - Hs
and equipment N 7 (739) (129)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - #S
plant and equipment P& PAIECE N 36 - 3
Proceeds from disposal HERELEZIERBEE
of non-current assets held for sale Z TS 9 28,000 —
Increase in film deposits B 2N (998) (17.253)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 2 ERITIF R 2 B - 2,000
Payments for film rights BRI R BLER
and films in progress ZBEAIRK 11 (68,090) (91,850)
Interest received 2 FIE 31 288 2,675
Decrease/(increase) in other H M IRITER
bank deposit A (35 hn) 51,742 (51,742)
Net cash used in investing activities & EEFTHZ FIR & 10,203 (156,396)
Cash flows from financing activities MEFE 2R ERE
Capital element of finance lease SNBMERE
payments 2 BARED 36 (80) (86)
Net cash used in financing activities EEE/EEFTAZFIRE (80) (86)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HeRESEEY
and cash equivalents ZFE I/ Of4) 55,484 (80,315)
Cash and cash equivalents RENERE
at beginning of the year NBEEZEEY 64,844 145,159
Cash and cash equivalents REKRES
at end of the year RESZEY 18 120,328 64,844

The notes on pages 49 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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General information

Universe International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in distribution of films in various videogram
formats, film exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights and leasing of investment properties.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 19th October 2010.

Summary of significant
accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which is a collective term referred
to all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations (“Ints")
issued by The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, which are
carried at fair value.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 B4 55 i 35 Mt it

EEEHTBERE »

2 Summary of significant 2

accounting policies (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group'’s
accounting policies. The actual results may differ
from these estimates. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. The Group has adopted the new
and revised HKFRSs below, which are relevant
to its operations, in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %% & B4 %5 i = Bt 53

2 Summary of significant 2 EESHEXRBE@w
accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 wEEE @)
Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUT BB Z#%
BMHNETHBEENR
HKFRS (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 1st January 2009
BRI (IBRT ) BT E B 2 B —EZNF-A—H
HKFRS (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 1st July 2009
BRI (IBRT ) B 75 4 8112009 2 B —ETNFELH—H
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements 1st January 2009
G RIZE 5 (BEE]) MgEmEKz 275 —TENF—H—H
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial 1st July 2009
Statements
SHERIE 2797 (F1B8F]) e RB M BEmER —ETNFLA—H
HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, 1st January 2009
(Amendments) Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
B AE RIS 15 I BRERMBAR - HEESIEE —ZTZENF-—H—H
G HERIZFE 275 (BRI AS) A QR Z A
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Financial Instruments — Fair Value 1st January 2009
Measurements and Liquidity Risk of
Financial Instruments
B HSAERIZE 755 (18 ET AN) PRIAZAVTEFERESHRIA —ZTENF—H—H
ZmEBEERR
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments 1st January 2009
B i5AE R S5 855 gESH —EZNF-A—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 B4 55 i 35 Mt it

2 Summary of significant 2 EBEE

accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1

The adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised), HKFRS 7
(Amendment) and HKFRS 8 did not have a
material impact on the Group’s financial
statements other than on increase in disclosure.
In summary:

. HKAS 1 (Revised) requires all owner
changes in equity to be presented in a
statement of changes in equity. All
comprehensive income is presented in one
statement of comprehensive income or in
two statements (a separate statement of
comprehensive income and a statement of
comprehensive income). It requires
presenting a statement of balance sheet as
at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period in a complete set of financial
statements when there are retrospective
adjustments or reclassification adjustments.
However, it does not change the recognition,
measurement or disclosure of specific
transactions and other events required by
other HKFRSs. Comparative information has
been re-presented so that it is also in
conformity with this revised standard. Since
the change in accounting policy only results
in additional disclosures, there is no impact
on the Group's or Company'’s results and
financial position.
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EEETBERE »

2 Summary of significant 2
accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 wEEE @)

. HKFRS 7 (Amendment) requires enhanced
disclosures about fair value measurement
and liquidity risk. In particular, the
amendment requires disclosure of fair
value measurements by level of a fair
value measurement hierarchy. As the
change in accounting policy only results
in additional disclosures, there is no
impact on the Group's or Company's
results and financial position.

° HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14. The new
standard requires a ‘management approach’,
under which segment information is
presented on the same basis as that used
for internal reporting purposes. The adoption
of other new/revised HKFRS has no
significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
has not led to any significant changes in the
accounting policies applied in these financial
statements, and has no material effect on the
Group's results and financial position for the
current or prior accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.

The Group has not early adopted any new
standards, amendments and interpretation of the
HKFRS which have been issued but not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1st July
2009, details of which are set out in Note 43.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

Summary of significant
accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the

financial statements of the Company and all of
its subsidiaries made up to 30th June.

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
special purpose entities) over which the
Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls
another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.
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2.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

Summary of significant
accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The purchase method of accounting is
used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the fair value
of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any
minority interest. The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the cost of acquisition is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognized directly in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealized gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

A7 A B R B RE

2

EEETBERE »

22 #EEKRE @®
(a) MBAF (&)

WA REREEKE
BB AR R © I
BHRARERRZ 7B
e TEE - IRTHK
AT ARMAESSAED
BENAFEFE - SN
B EEEEORAE
T A HF P AT AT 3
B EENRFIAENA
BERIABE  BENRE
ERME B M QP ER
B MmAmER D HAR
RSB - WEAAE
B 7 5% [ FE A P AR T A
RIEEFENTENEE
LR AR - BWEAA
BRABANBAREE
FENRTE S ZERE
BEESAEZENBERARE

=7
o

SERARRRZRS - &
BERHZAREBERLEET
PASTEH - BRIER H IR AT
BEEEREIERE &
AIRERBBETTAY
e MBARMNEHE
ERFEEHNE - AW
REREERAZ R
B

ETERZERERAR —Z—FFFH 55




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

Summary of significant
accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses
(Note 2.8). The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Jointly controlled assets

Jointly controlled assets are assets of a joint
venture over which the Group has joint
control with other venturers in accordance
with contractual arrangements and through
the joint control of which the Group has
control over its share of future economic
benefits earned from the assets.

The Group’s share of jointly controlled
assets and any liabilities incurred jointly
with other venturers are recognized in the
consolidated balance sheet and classified
according to their nature. Liabilities and
expenses incurred directly in respect of
its interests in jointly controlled assets are
accounted for on an accrual basis. Income
from the sale or use of the Group's share
of the output of the jointly controlled
assets together with its share of any
expenses incurred by the joint ventures,
are recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income
when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transactions
will flow to or from the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant
accounting policies (continued)

2.3

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker (the
“CODM"). The CODM, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
as the chairman of the Group that makes strategic
decisions.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to that segment. Segment
revenue, expenses and segment performance
include transactions between segments. Inter
segment pricing is based on similar terms as
those available to other external parties for similar
services. These transactions are eliminated upon
consolidation.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the year to acquire segment
assets (both tangible and intangible) that are
expected to be used for more than one year.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets and liabilities, cash and cash
equivalents, deferred income tax assets, deferred
income tax liabilities, taxation payable and
interest income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

Summary of significant
accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation
currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’'s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company'’s functional
and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as available-for-sale are
analyzed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortized
cost of the security and other changes in
the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes
in amortized cost are recognized in profit
or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognized in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

Summary of significant
accounting policies (continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses:

— buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land, where the fair
value of the building could be measured
separately from the fair value for the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease
(Note 2.7(a)); and

— other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises (i) its purchase price, (ii)
any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use, and (iii) the initial estimate at the
time of installation and during the period of use,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying
amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment or recognized as a separate item of
property, plant and equipment, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 B4 55 i 35 Mt it

EEEHTBERE »

2 Summary of significant 2

accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 Y¥ - BB/REHE @

(Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is Y -~ BB RBREITERBUT

calculated using the straight-line method to RO ET AT A SF BRI A A R B AR

allocate cost to their residual values over their DEEFIREEE -

estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of useful life HETHR AERERRES
or lease term EF FH(REREE)

Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful life MEVZRE WUEREHKAEE
or lease term FH(REREE)

Machinery and equipment 3 -5 years s Rkt 3ZE54F

Others 5 years HAf 54

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are BEMNFBREERNERFHES

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each H&EE RETR  REBEZRA

balance sheet date. o

An asset's carrying amount is written down EBEEENREAESRE M AUk E

immediately to its recoverable amount if the B1E - HAREE AR HOR 2 AT Y]

asset's carrying amount is greater than its &5 (Mf5E2.8) °

estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by & R ER TS R A EMN E5

comparing the proceeds with the carrying EBE  TEGFEEZAKRGRARN

amount and are recognized within “other gains [Efhfees — S8 P RER ©

— net"” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

2.6 Investment properties 26 BEYHE

Property that is held for long-term rental yields
and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated group, is classified as investment

property.

Investment property is measured initially at its
cost, including related transaction costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

Summary of significant
accounting policies (continued)

2.6

Investment properties (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections.
These valuations of the investment properties are
performed in accordance with the guidance
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.
These valuations are reviewed annually by
external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current
leases and assumptions about rental income
from future leases in the light of current market
conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis,
any cash outflows that could be expected in
respect of the property. Some of those outflows
are recognized as a liability, including finance
lease liabilities in respect of land classified as
investment property; others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's
carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

Summary of significant
accounting policies (continued)

2.6

2.7

Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-

occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant and

equipment, and its fair value at the date of

reclassification becomes its cost for accounting

purposes.

Leased assets

(a)

Operating lease

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payment
made under the leases are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term except where
an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is stated in the consolidated
balance sheet as “Leasehold land” and is
amortized to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as
an investment property.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

Summary of significant
accounting policies (continued)

2.7 Leased assets (Continued)

(b)

Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalized at the
lease’'s commencement at the lower of
the fair value of the leased property and
the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance
charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in current
and non-current borrowings. The interest
element of the finance cost is recognized
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the lease
period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The
investment properties acquired under
finance leases are carried at their fair
value.
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2 Summary of significant 2

accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Impairment of investments in 28 MEBARKRFEMBEER
subsidiaries and non-financial BRI E
assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not REREERFH EERT S
subject to amortization, and are tested annually i - BT FERREETA
for impairment. Assets are reviewed for 2 REBSHLBERERHE
impairment whenever events or changes in R BR TE B 1) g M A U B B R
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount BE#ETR - BREBEBEREEZ
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is FREEBEE WO ¢RE s =5
recognized for the amount by which the asset's R B SEAEE AT
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. BENREEXN AN EREBME
The recoverable amount is the higher of an ZREERE - EEXREMNIE
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in Mg EEETERS B HEME
use. Non-financial assets that suffered an BRG] ABBEITRE °
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment of each reporting date.

2.9 Non-current assets held for sale 29 BEHEZIRBEE

Non-current assets are classified as assets held-
for-sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction
and a sale is considered highly probable. They
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount
is to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

Summary of significant
accounting policies (continued)

2.10 Other intangible asset

2.1

The club membership is carried at cost less
impairment losses.

The club membership has an indefinite useful life
and is thus not subject to amortization. The club
membership is tested at least annually for
impairment and is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’'s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group's loans and receivables
comprise “other receivables” and “cash
and cash equivalents” in the balance
sheet (Notes 2.15 and 2.16).

A7 A B R B RE

2

EEETBERE »

210 B\ EE

SRETVER AR BUER RS

ERRERECRFHNETE
e BRRLEBFRBEETE
A REAEFEHHEERNER
TRAREE ] B R 2 B phIRL (B 2
1THR AT °

FRENREERREMGETATKE
BfE - HAREEADE MUK E A 4R El

211 EREE

AEERESREED BRI TR
Bl B ERERIE - AR A
E-DRBIBATREEZR
Mo EEERETIGERARETS
BEENDLE -

(a) EXRKEWNKE

BEREERREAEEE
A EENRELRZELE
RS ERENIEITE
CREE - WEHABRRE
ERBEEAN BEHR
SHEIRBRT B2 AT
FEE - Ao B AFERE
BE ASEBNERKE
WHIEREEB BRI HA
EHFIEBERREE
BYIAEK (215K
2.16) °

ETERERERAR —Z-—FFFHR 65




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

Summary of significant
accounting policies (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end
of the reporting period.

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognized on the
trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognized at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognized when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the
group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale financial assets are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

Summary of significant
accounting policies (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Available-for-sale financial assets
(Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in a foreign
currency and classified as available-for-sale
are analyzed between translation
differences resulting from changes in
amortized cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the
security. The translation differences on
monetary securities are recognized in
profit or loss; translation differences on
non-monetary securities are recognized in
other comprehensive income. Changes in
the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-
for-sale are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognized in equity
are included in the statement of
comprehensive income as “gains and
losses from investment securities”

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest
method is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income as part of other
income. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income as
part of other income when the Group's
right to receive payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 B %5 3t 3% [t 5%

2 Summary of significant 2 EES

accounting policies (continued)
2.12 Inventories 2.12

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realizable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis. The cost of finished
goods comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead. It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

2.13 Film rights and films in progress 2.13
(i) Film rights

Film rights comprise fees paid and payable
under agreements and direct expenses
incurred during the production of films, for
the reproduction and/or distribution of
films in various videogram formats, film
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of
film titles.

Film rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of film rights is amortized over
the shorter of the underlying license
period and their economic lives, with
reference to projected revenues.

(ii) Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less
any provision for impairment losses. Cost
includes all direct costs associated with
the production of films. Cost of films is
transferred to film rights upon completion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & B4 %5 i 35 i} 5%

2 Summary of significant
accounting policies (continued)

2.13 Film rights and films in progress
(Continued)

(iii)

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, both internal
and external market information are
considered to assess whether there is any
indication that assets included in film
rights and films in progress are impaired.
If any such indication exists, the carrying
amount of such assets is assessed and
where relevant, an impairment loss is
recognized to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such impairment
losses are recognized within “other
operating expenses” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

2.14 Film deposits

Film deposits comprise deposits paid for the

acquisition of film rights and deposits paid to

production houses, artistes and others prior to

the production of films. The balance payable

under agreements for acquisition and production

of film rights is disclosed as a commitment.

Provision for film deposits is made to the extent

that they are not expected to generate any future

revenue for the Group.
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2 Summary of significant 2
accounting policies (continued)

2.15 EUWNERA R H b FE UK

2.15 Accounts and other receivables
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Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Accounts and other receivables are recognized
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of accounts and other
receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and default
or delinguency in payments are considered
indicators that the accounts receivable is
impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within ‘other operating expenses’. When
a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for accounts
receivable. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against ‘other
operating expenses’ in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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2 Summary of significant 2
accounting policies (continued)

216 HERIREZEY

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less.

REMREFEYREFERS
RITENGFEREREREEHAA=EA
FATHEMEHSRBERE -

2.17 Share capital 2.17 BR7
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. LiER B AR
2.18 Trade payables 2.18 B IR

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

2.19

BNERASERELEEEDTEER
Pﬁu%ﬁﬁ&i%ﬁﬁf&“iﬁﬁ’]%i% aafiid
EREY ST B B — S 3A R (10
MEEREKERAGT - AR BRE
B) - Ao BERRBAE: BRI
DERIENBEE -

ERRELREHR

AHRMBIAR L B E HART
BIA - HEEEZEK SR ER
BRAHMEEK DT RERERE
ST HERNIAE BREE BRI - &
ZBERT - MRS B EREMERS
Yo ah o B 1% e A 2t P RERR

EHMEH B RIEAR A B R EH
BAREERELRRTMANE
RNEE HE R EERMAOTH
BEDIFE - EEERERABRLE
1§IJﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁ@’%ﬁﬁ,ﬁ;ﬁﬁﬁi&ﬁ
RO - WEERBR TRETR
EAZA R T 7% 4 R ST RO Bd ok AR E 1
e

ETERERERAA —Z—ZFFH /)]




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 B4 55 i 35 Mt it

EEEHTBERE »

2 Summary of significant 2
accounting policies (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax 219 ERIEEFEH &)
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(Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2

Summary of significant
accounting policies (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
and long service leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognized until
the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to Mandatory
Provident Fund in Hong Kong, the assets
of which are held in separate trustee —
administered funds. The pension plan is
funded by payments from employees and
by the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are
expensed as incurred and are not reduced
by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.
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2

Summary of significant
accounting policies (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates share option scheme
where employees (and including directors)
are granted share options to acquire
shares of the Company at specified
exercise price. The fair value of the share
options granted is recognized as share-
based compensation in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over
the vesting period and credited to the
share-based compensation reserve under
equity. The fair value of the share options
granted is measured at grant date using
the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model
and spread over the respective vesting
period during which the share option
scheme participants become
unconditionally entitled to the share
options. During the vesting period, the
number of share options that is expected
to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognized in prior
years is charged or credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, unless the original share-based
compensation qualifies for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based compensation reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognized
as share-based compensation is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of share
options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to share-based compensation
reserve). The reserve will be transferred
to share capital and share premium
account upon exercise of the share
options.
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(iii)
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2 Summary of significant 2
accounting policies (continued)

2.21 B1&

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: (i) the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a

EHBEATER TEELEE : )
AEEREHENEHMELRA

result of past events; (ii) it is probable that an RERSHEEEERE 5 ()R ER
outflow of resources will be required to settle BERMEAEREE  Kli)E
the obligation; and (iii) the amount has been BE LA S {hET - BESTSRER

reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provision are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognized as interest expense.

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group's activities.

The Group recognizes revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and specific criteria have been met
for each of the Group's activities as described
below.

(i) Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognized on the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered to customers and the title
has passed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant
accounting policies (continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii) Income from the licensing and sub-
licensing of film rights is recognized upon
the delivery of the pre-recorded audio
visual products and the materials for video
features including the master tapes to the
customers, in accordance with the terms
of the underlying contracts.

(i) Film exhibition income is recognized when
the film is shown and the right to receive
payment is established.

(iv)  Operating lease and other rental income
is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

(v) Interest income is recognized on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the
interest rates applicable.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognized as a liability in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company'’s shareholders.
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3

Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the
Group'’s financial performance. The policies for
managing these risks are summarized below.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with
respect to the United States
dollars. Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial
transactions, recognized assets
and liabilities. Hong Kong dollars is
pegged to the United States dollars
and thus foreign exchange
exposure is considered to be
minimal.
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3 Financial risk management

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets (except short-term
deposits) and liabilities. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its interest-
bearing assets including short-term
bank deposits and other bank
deposit.

As at 30th June 2010, if the interest
rate increased/decreased by 50
basis-point with all other variables
held constant, loss attributable to
the equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 30th June 2010
would have been approximately
HK$73,000 lower/higher (2009:
HK$162,000), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest income on
the short-term bank deposits and
other bank deposit.

A W5 i R B T

3 BEERBERE@®

3.1 BERRBEE )

(a) TWHEEARE)

(ii)

/8 UNIVERSE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010

= g

ZANE SE N SN
SEE BRRHAER
SN REE - MRz
BHSAREAR
R R R B = 2R
BEREHRTE
AR EMIRITER
EAMGREE -

RZZE—ZFFXA
=+A8 - WEME
T WA =X
I IN/E > B0E B -
BHE_ZT-ZTFX
A=THLEEZ
RRAAEREB A
EHEERSE
H/m T HBE
73,0007 (ZZEZ 1
F : E¥162,000
7o) BEEERAER
RERITERRA
fth SR 1717 RS R B
=/ E AR F WK
)\ o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

Financial risk management

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk arises from cash
and cash equivalents and deposits with
bank and financial institutions, as well as
credit exposures to customers, including
outstanding receivables and committed
transactions. Management has policies in
place to monitor the exposures to these
credit risks on an on-going basis.

For banks and financial institutions,
deposits are only placed with reputable
banks. For credit exposures with
customers, the Group has put in place
policies to ensure that provision of
services to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its
customers. The Group's historical
experience in collection of accounts
receivable falls within the recorded
allowances.
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3 Financial risk management 3
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
The table below shows the credit limit and

balance of the three major debtors at the
respective balance sheet dates.

MEERER @

3.1 BERRBEE )
(b) HEEREK &)
TEBREREREE
A —AxERKERS
EREERENEL -

As at 30 June

RANA=1+H
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZTNF
Credit limit Utilized  Credit limit Utilized
EEIRE EfFEA EER%E B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BET T BET T
Counterparty RSHEH
Customer A EFA 3,000 2,200 3,000 2,428
Customer B ZFB 600 570 330 150
Customer C =EC 430 430 300 230

No credit limits were exceeded during the
reporting period, and management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by
these counterparties.
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3 Financial risk management 3 HMEBERERBRERE@®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MEREBEZE @
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EER &)

The credit quality of financial assets that are RBHAS R EN YK E
neither past due nor impaired can be EZEEEZRM2BRS
assessed by reference to the counterparty’s #7538 1 B 38 K 50 8% 1F
default history. The current portion of FFAd o Rk (B B Bl B E L
accounts receivable, which is not impaired ERRATAT -

is analyzed below:

As at 30th June

RAB=+H
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Accounts receivable FE U BR X
New customers Y=
(less than 12 months) (L1218 8) 555 168
Existing customers REEP
(more than 12 months) (W12 A8) 1,094 2,967
Total Febc 1,649 3,135
ETEBBRERAT —T-TEER 8]




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 B4 55 i 35 Mt it

3 Financial risk management 3 HMEBEREBRERE@®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BXEREE@®
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EER &)
As at 30th June 2010, accounts receivable RZE—ZFA=+
of HK$10,665,000 (2009: HK$2,630,000) Bl - E;ﬁﬁzﬁﬁ RERMEZ
were past due but not impaired. These E W BR R B B K
relate to a number of independent 10,665,000 (== Z 1
customers for whom there is no recent & B#2,630,000T) °
history of default. The ageing analysis of % EIRFR TR — LT B
these accounts receivable by due dates I 4 HE R RC 8% B 9B 3
is as follows: Xo-BRHBZzZEKERZ
BREQDMTWNT -
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T EEE T
Up to 90 days BNEAZ=90H 8,250 2,280
91 days to 180 days 91H£180H 1,977 99
Over 180 days 180H M E 438 251
10,665 2,630
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3 Financial risk management 3 HMEBERERBRERE@®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEREBEZE @
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EER &)
The table below shows the Group's and TRBERAEERAAR F
the Company's cash and cash equivalents REEBZHERREE
and bank deposits with listed financial B A7 B =it B 75 1
institutions at balance sheet dates. B2 RITEK °
2010 2009
—E-=EF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T TS IT
Group REH
Cash and bank deposits with T U T BT A5 i 78
listed financial institutions 2B RRITERX 120,264 116,419
Pledged bank deposits with 7R LT B IS s
listed financial institutions Z BEBRITER - —
120,264 116,419
Company ¥
Cash and cash equivalents with 77U T BF ##iE
listed financial institutions ZHERRSEEY 55 80
None of the terms of financial assets RBE_FT—ZFH=
which are past due or impaired have been THIEFER @ I E0%
renegotiated during the year ended 30th BEZHRAEBHKE
June 2010 (2009: same). WEMSEFHE - (ZF
ZNEFE : R
ETHBRERERAE —T—ZFFH 83
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3 Financial risk management 3 HMEBEREBRERE@®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEREBEZE @
(¢) Liquidity risk (c) RBESRBS

The Group manages its liquidity risk by AEEBARBFTERS
maintaining sufficient cash and monitoring FETREZEERBESS
the liquidity requirements from time to KABEEEREE R
time. Bz o
The table below analyzes the Group's and TRBERAEERAR 7
the Company’s financial liabilities into R B ERAOFREELE
relevant maturity groupings based on the HEENTETKAE &
remaining period from the balance sheet AR BAER - B
date to the contractual maturity date. The HAEEBZA4OE8BEM
amounts disclosed in the table are the FIeRHA BT DT  FEXR
contractual undiscounted cash flows. NEBNEEAE LR

BEMBRERE -
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3

(Continued)

(c)

A

S5 AR I AR

EFERZERERAR T TFFH

Financial risk management 3 HMEBERERBRERE@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEREBEZE @
Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBESES (&)
Less than Between 1 Between 2
Tyear and2years  and5years  Overb years Total
184 1226/ 2E5ER BENE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR AR AR BETT AR
Group S 1]
At 30th June 2010 RZE-E55xA=1H
Accounts payable JE(THER 3,134 — — — 3,134
Other payables and HHERERR
accrued charges B 6,871 = = = 6,871
Obligations under finance leases B T g 80 71 - - 151
Amount due to the ultimate ERRAZR
holding company GESE 1 = = = 1
At 30th June 2009 RZEEAERA=1H
Accounts payable JE(THER 3,826 — — — 3,826
Other payables and HHERERR
accrued charges B 13,346 = = = 13,346
Obligations under finance leases B T g 80 80 7 - 231
Amount due to the ultimate R RAZR
holding company GE 1 — — — 1
Company NG
At 30th June 2010 R-Z-Z2EXA=1H
Amount due to a subsidiary G 625 = = = 625
Accrued charges JEit i 1515 = = = 1515
At 30th June 2009 RZEEAERA=1H
Amount due to a subsidiary EFHEARRE 1408 - = = 1,408
Accrued charges fEs it 1632 = = = 1632
As at 30th June 2010, the Group had no RN—E—ZFTENA=+
borrowing facilities. B ASETEGEER
J_‘g_ o
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3

Financial risk management
(Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
borrowings (including current and non-current
obligations under finance leases) divided by total
capital. Total capital is calculated as “equity’, as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the year ended 30th June 2010, the Group's
strategy, which was unchanged from 2009, was
to maintain a lower gearing ratio. The gearing ratio
at 30th June 2010 was 0.1% (2009: 0.1%).

Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of
receivables and payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values.

g A

07 N =)

3

S 5 ¥ 3R I AR

MEERER @

3.2

3.3
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A7 A B R B RE

3 Financial risk management 3 HMEBERERBRERE@®
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AYEMGF @

Effective 1st July 2009, the Group adopted the AT NF+tA B ~&EE

amendment to HKFRS 7 for financial instruments RN ER 7R EEEmT A

that are measured in the balance sheet at fair FEEBBEREZATEFENE

value, this requires disclosure of fair value ® o HREER T AT EERE
measurements by level of the following fair value HEATEFNE

measurement hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active o HREENBEEERT
markets for identical assets or liabilities HHHRE CREHAE) (F1
(level 1). ) °

. Inputs other than quoted prices included . BRTEIBMBENRE
within level 1 that are observable for the Gy ZEBEEMABERNAIE
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as RPOHME A - Al BHEE
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from (BRI anE4%) ks (BNIR
prices) (level 2). BEK) (B2/E) -

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not o BEMBEWEKETE
based on observable market data (that is, R IR E A (BIFER
unobservable inputs) (level 3). BIRgA) (£3E) -

The following table presents the Group's assets TREMMESEEEMEEZNZ

and liabilities that are measured at fair value at T—EENA=THFENQF

30th June 2010. H o

Level 3 Total
E3E Mg
HK$'000 HK$'000

Assets EE ST IT ST

Available-for-sale financial asset AHHENSREE

— Equity securities — BRES 1,275 1,275

Total assets g E 1,275 1,275

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3.

n—IR L ZIRE A AN SFAR IR A
BIRmIZEE - AZERTAA
SE3E -

ETERERERAR —Z-—2FFH g/
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3 Financial risk management
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include other techniques,
such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used
to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

The following table presents the changes in level
3 instruments for the year ended 30th June 2010:

3

MEERER @

3.3 AFEMRFFT @

AT 2 B T AL (i (E 1
BIERALIRGT - P E RS RS
P - BABEABEBTANA
FiE -

TRETBE_Z-ZEFRA=T
HIEFEFE3EEM T ANES

Available-for-sale

financial asset Total

AHHENESREE wma

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T S EE T

Opening balance BRF 45 — —
Additions N 1,275 1,275
Closing balance HR 4 84 1,275 1,275
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Impairment of film rights, films in
progress and film deposits

The Group assesses annually whether the film
rights, films in progress and film deposits have
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2. Such annual
assessment is performed specifically for each film
and film deposit at each balance date with reference
to the cast or scale of each film, current market
conditions and each film deposit recipient’s
reputation, trade history and current financial
position. According to the management’s cash
inflow forecast in respect of each film title and
realization of each film deposit, an impairment loss
of HK$5,097,000 (2009: HK$3,612,000) was
recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income to reduce the carrying
amounts of certain film rights and film deposits to
their recoverable amounts. If projected cash inflow
from these films were to deteriorate, additional
provision for impairment may be required.

4

RS hE R A

HEMAE SR ENE - ARBBEL
BMEMERETHE  BRERBEER
THERKREENEERA -

REEHRRELHEMRR - FIENE
AAEENEEE  ROGEABRERE
Fl e RAMEEH T EVRFENEEM
BEMNEREAEELDEAFAENGERMRE
SERAAT ©

(o) BRME DT
ENEEEEZRE

WA FE2FTE 2 @ ETHUCR - A%
@Eﬁ%ﬁ'ﬂm%&%ﬁmﬂé CBUER 2 E
REXRERBEZTMRE -
¢t&¢zaﬂamu§?€-%&%
BEYRCHEEALERBESY Y
V8 B A SRR IR R 2 TS &
BREKNRELIIeEZEE X5
JFE 5. % B AR B IBSA O30 i S 3 1k b 2
11 - BIBEREREREZH B M
ER 2 RERATBRARESEEE
SR ER G  ERGEE2ERE
RN R R E BB ES5,097,000
T (ZEZN4F : 583,612,000
) UEETERRERERIR
& REEREE AT KREIZEE - 4
REZEEY 2BARSRAR
A+ BIRJBERAE L BINRE B o

ETEBRERERAA —Z-2FF 80
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of film rights, films in
progress and film deposits (Continued)

As at 30th June 2010, the carrying value of film
rights, films in progress and film deposits
amounted to approximately HK$146,809,000
(2009: HK$162,760,000).

Provision for impairment of
accounts receivable

The provision policy for accounts receivable of the
Group is based on the evaluation of recoverability
of those receivables and management'’s judgment.
A considerable judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realization of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history and repayment pattern of each
customer. During the year, an impairment losses
of HK$1,000 (2009: HK$236,000) was recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income to reduce the carrying amount of certain
receivables of the Group to their recoverable
amounts. If the financial conditions of these
customers were to deteriorate, additional provision
for impairment may be required. As at 30th June
2010, the carrying value of accounts receivable
amounted to approximately HK$12,314,000 (2009:
HK$5,765,000).

g A

07 N =)

4

S 5 ¥ 3R I AR

ARSI HERAE o

(a)

(b)
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Critical accounting estimates and

judgements (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Amortization of film rights

The Group is required to estimate the projected
revenue of the film rights based on the shorter
of the underlying license period and their
economic lives in order to ascertain the amount
of amortization charges for each reporting period.
The appropriateness of the amortization estimate
requires the use of judgement and estimates
with reference to the prevailing and future market
conditions and the expected cashflow pattern of
the projected revenue. Changes in these
estimates and assumptions could have a material
effect on the amortization expenses.

Estimated valuation of investment
properties

In determining the fair value, the valuer has based
on property valuation techniques which involve,
inter alia, certain estimates including comparable
sales in the relevant market, current market rents
for similar properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates and
expected future market rents. In relying on the
valuation report, management has exercised their
judgement and is satisfied that the method of
valuation is reflective of the current market
condition.

Fair value of available-for-sale
financial asset

The fair value of available-for-sale financial asset
that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgement to select a variety of
methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end
of each reporting period. The Group has used
discounted cash flow analysis for the available-
for-sale financial asset that is not traded in active
markets. Changes in these estimates and
assumptions could have a material effect on the
fair value of the available-for-sale financial asset.

g2z A

W H

4
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(d)
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(f) Recognition of deferred income tax
assets

According to the accounting policy as stated in
Note 2.19, deferred income tax assets are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and
tax losses can be utilized, and it is measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax assets are
realized. In determining the deferred income tax
assets to be recognized, management is required
to estimate the future applicable tax rate for each
subsidiary of the Company at each tax jurisdiction
and the profitability of each subsidiary, so as to
estimate the future utilization of tax losses. Any
difference between these estimates and the
actual outcome will impact the Group’s result in
the period in which the actual outcome is
determined.

5 Segment information

Primary reporting format — business
segments

The CODM reviews the Group's internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments
based on these reports, as below:

— Distribution of films in various videogram formats

— Film exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights

— Leasing of investment properties

A W5 i R B T

4 BRESTTHERHAE o

() WREZEFMEHREE

RIBMFE2 1 OFTEE T R E
EREFEHEERE AR HIRARK
& FR T3 ) AP 81 B B 2 R M IR
BRI T AR - AR2RAH
BEFMGHEERTE A ZHE
FHE - BESTHRR ZRLEMEH
BER  BEEBAR/ARRMNE
MR 2 B A REL B RER
ZREREWBAR BT EE
NIEAEBIRERZ BIRER - %F
B ERERBNEAERGE
FEAKRENETERGERBEA
ZEE o

5 ZoHER
FTEFMBE — EBIHME
*SI.

BREERREBEAEENAILREIA
HERBMOEER - EREBDRERE

HEREEELLEDHWT

— UTRBGHAET

E/
2

&

— B RERBREZRE

—  HHERE®ME
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Segment information (continved)

Primary reporting format — business
segments (Continued)

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of segment results. This
measurement basis excludes the effects of non-
recurring expenditure from the operating segments,
such as gain/loss on disposal of non-current asset held
for sale. Finance income and income tax are not included
in the result for each operating segment that is reviewed
by the CODM. Other information provided, except as
noted below, to the CODM is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the financial statements.

Total assets exclude other intangible asset, available-
for-sale financial asset, deferred income tax assets, other
bank deposit, cash and cash equivalents and other
unallocated assets (including leasehold land, property,
plant and equipment, film rights and films in progress,
film deposits, deposits paid and prepayments and non-
current assets held for sale), all of which are managed
on a central basis. These are part of the reconciliation
to total balance sheet assets.

The Group's intersegment transactions mainly consist
of licensing of film rights, which are transferred at cost.
The revenue from external parties reported to the CODM
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Secondary reporting format —
geographical segments

Distribution of films in various videogram formats is
solely operated in Hong Kong and Macau, while the
Group operates its film exhibition, licensing and sub-
licensing of film rights in five (2009: five) main
geographical segments. Segment assets, capital
expenditure and costs are based on the geographical
location of the assets.

There are no sales between geographical segments.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 454 H4 15 3 5 [} 2F
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5 Segment information (continved) 5 2HER @
Primary reporting format — business FEIBHE — EKITE
segments
2010
“E-%%
Film
exhibition,
licensing
and sub-
licensing  Leasing of
Sale of of film  investment
goods rights properties Others  Elimination Group
¥ MM
RERER HARE
HEER e ng Hith % rEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BRI BRI
Revenue Wz
External sales H5h 2 HE 20,150 94,501 - 4,445 - 119,096
Inter-segment sales PEBEZHE - 11,524 - 155 (11,679) -
20,150 106,025 - 4,600 (11,679) 119,096
Results *i
Segment results before BB
impairment losses LAHEE (3,556) (11,658) (1,204) 2,463 - (13,955)
Impairment losses of film EYMEREY %
rights and film deposits LREER - (5,097) - - - (5,097)
Segment results PHEE (3,556) (16,755) (1,204) 2,463 - (19,052)
Gain on disposal of non-current  HEREHE ZERDEE
assets held for sale bl 6 - - 4,355 - - 4,355
Increase in fair value of REME
investment properties ZATEEN - - 50 - - 50
Finance income BIEMA 288
Loss before income tax BREGRAEE (14,359)
Income tax expense FERER (400)
Loss attributable to equity ARAREREEA
holders of the Company EiEEE (14,759)
Assets EE
Segment assets PEREE 15,057 40,225 440 6,970 - 62,692
Unallocated assets KAEEE 262,774
Total assets BEE 325,466
Liabilities af
Segment liabilities &R 2,121 31,751 90 2,281 - 36,249
Unallocated liabilities AAREE 8,286
Total liabilities Bafk 44,535
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 SEER @
Primary reporting format — business FEIBHE — EKITE
segments (Continued) # @)
2010
Z2-2F
Film
exhibition,
licensing
and sub-
licensing Leasing of
Sale of of film investment
goods rights properties Others Group
EFHM
BRHLRER HERE
HEER AT nE it s 1]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETT BET BYTR
Other information HiEH
Capital expenditures EAHRY 8,889 38 - - 8,927
Unallocated capital expenditures KA T E A RS 59,902
Total capital expenditures BARERY 68,829

Depreciation and amortization of  #1& k&1

leasehold land 2B 633 78 - 8 719
Unallocated depreciationand ~ AAEMEREELH

amortization of leasehold land 2 #$H 975
Total depreciation and BRERMELH

amortization of leasehold land ~ ZZ$H 1,694
Amortization charge of film rights & &/ i# 2 & 35 12,18 67,824 - - 79,942

ETERERERAR —Z—FFFH 05
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5 Segment information (continved) 5 2HER @
Primary reporting format — business EoHHRE — XX HE
segments (Continued) *il (%)
2009
—EENF
Film
exhibition,
licensing
and sub-
licensing Leasing of
Sale of of film investment
goods rights properties Others  Elimination Group
2208
R RER LHRRE
HEEm B M ES Hith g AEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT BT BB
Revenue &
External sales 8oz 3HE 24,395 62,669 376 2,293 - 89,733
Inter-segment sales ABEZHE — 4,700 — 700 (5,400) —
24,395 67,369 376 2,993 (5,400) 89,733
Results *i
Segment results before REEEA
impairment losses LNBEE (950) (934) 38 205 = (1,641)
Impairment losses of film EEYMEREY 2
rights and film deposits ZREBE (23) (3,589) — — - (3,612)
Segment results PEEE (973) (4,523) 38 205 — (5,253
Decrease in fair value of RENS
investment properties LAFERD = — 5,820) — — (5,820)
Finance income FBMA 2,575
Loss before income tax BEGHAER (8,498)
Income tax expense MERER (1,207)
Loss attributable to equity ARRERRHEA
holders of the Company EfEER 9,705
Assets BE
Segment assets NHEE 20,965 17,061 17,811 6,657 — 62,494
Unallocated assets RAREE 288,526
Total assets BEE 351,020
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilties AHAR 3,281 41,616 95 1,680 - 46,672
Unallocated liabilities KAEER 8,749
Total liabilities BaE 55,421
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 72HER @
Primary reporting format — business FEIBHE — EKITE
segments (Continued) # @)
2009
ZEThE
Film
exhibition,
licensing
and sub-
licensing Leasing of
Sale of of film investment
goods rights properties Others Group
Rl RER iR E
HERM B M S Aty A5E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Other information Hip &R
Capital expenditures EAHERY 4,579 900 52 1 5,532
Unallocated capital expenditures R E AR R % 86,503
Total capital expenditures BERMRY 92,035

Depreciation and amortization of #& K&+,

leasehold land B 757 74 116 8 955
Unallocated depreciationand ~ AARMEREELH

amortization of leasehold land 2 Z$H 922
Total depreciation and BRERAELH

amortization of leasehold land ~ ZZ$H 1,877
Amortization charge of film rights & &/l 2 # 4 7657 36,494 = = 44,151

EFARBRERAT T TEFH O
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Segment information (continved) DEER @)
Secondary reporting format — BT EHRE — B HE
geographical segments
2010
—E-ZF
Total Capital
Revenue assets expenditures
W 2% HWEE EARMHEX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T BT T
Hong Kong and Macau BB KRR 55,492 307,347 68,829
Asia (other than Hong Kong T (BS
and Macau) KOBRFIER I 56,983 15,537 -
North America JEZE M 937 - -
Australia and New Zealand BN K2 4 78 974 65 -
Europe B 4,710 2,505 -
Others H Aty - 12 -
119,096 325,466 68,829
2009
—ZTTNF
Total Capital
Revenue assets expenditures
g mEE BN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Hong Kong and Macau BB KM 62,343 342,858 92,035
Asia (other than Hong Kong DM (BS
and Macau) KORPIBR AN 23,926 7484 —
North America 1L =M 758 640 —
Australia and New Zealand BN I 4 A 34 3 —
Europe BOM 2,068 23 —
Others B A 604 12 —
89,733 351,020 92,035

@8 UNIVERSE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR W5 R B

W H

6 Leasehold land 6 HELi
2010 2009
—E-=fF —ZTTNhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Group AEHE BET T ok
Cost BN
Beginning of the year F4) 11,583 13,673
Transfer to non-current assets held EREEREHE 2
for sale (Note 9) FEmEN & &= (T 7E9) - (2,090)
End of the year FaR 11,583 11,583
Accumulated amortization RETH#EH
Beginning of the year F4) 1,667 1,676
Amortization for the year FEEHE 252 293
Transfer to non-current assets held ERERIEHEZ
for sale (Note 9) FEmEN & &= (T 5E9) - (202)
End of the year FIR 1,919 1,667
Net book value REFE
End of the year F IR 9,664 9,916
Beginning of the year F4) 9,916 12,097
The Group's interest in leasehold land represents AEBEHET R ATENEERE
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book RRBEEEEFEITOT -
values are analyzed as follows:
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST
Held in Hong Kong on: EREBRESR
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10E50F EAM A E 6,305 6,475
Held outside Hong Kong on: EREBUAINGE -
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10E50F EiM A E 3,359 3,441
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7 Property, plant and equipment 7 ¥ HERRE
Machinery
Leasehold and Furniture Motor Office
Buildings improvements  equipment  and fixtures vehicles  equipment Total
BF HENERE HERRE  GARKE RE BAZRG #3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Group 150 ERTR BETT BETT BETT AETT AETT E%TR
Cost A
At st July 2009 RIEZNE
tA-H 11,847 6,812 25,883 1,491 2,305 6,872 55,210
Additions ER - 296 98 - - 345 739
Disposals (Note 36) It (HF£36) - (558) (3) - = - (561)
At 30th June 2010 RZE-T%
~AZTH 11,847 6,550 25,978 1491 2,305 1217 55,388

Accumulated depreciation Z2iH7E

At 1st July 2009 RZEENE
tA-H 1,879 6,365 25,105 1,446 1,210 6,474 42,539
Charge for the year ERNE 256 137 380 16 461 192 1,442
Disposals (Note 36) it (Hi3£36) - (228) {) - - - (229)
At 30th June 2010 RZE-2F
~A=TH 2,135 6,274 25,484 1,462 1,731 6,666 43,752
Net book value FEE
At 30th June 2010 RZE-ZF
~NA=TH 9,712 216 494 29 574 551 11,636
At 30th June 2009 RIZENE
~A=TH 9,968 447 778 45 1,035 398 12,671
As at 30th June 2010, net book value of machinery and R-ZE—FFENA=1H AEBERER
equipment held by the Group under finance leases is BHERA 2 MEREZREFELN R
approximately HK$150,000 (2009: HK$229,000). BH1650,000L (ZETNF : B

229,0007T) °
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e 5 R BT R

. 2 t
7 Property, plant and equipment 7 WFE - BERRZE®
(Continued)
Machinery
Leasehold and Furniture Motor Office
Buildings  improvements equipment  and fixtures vehicles equipment Total
BT HEWEERE ERRRE  RAREE AE BARRE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Group AEE BT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost KA
At 1st July 2008 RIZENE
tA-H 16,781 6,763 26,565 1,488 2,305 6,835 60,737
Additions R = 49 10 5 — 121 185
Transfer to non-current BRETHENE
assets held for sale LERBEE
[Note 9) (B9) (4,934) - - — - - (4,934)
Disposals (Note 36) it (HHE36) — - (692) 2) = (84) (778)
At 30th June 2009 RZEENE
777777777777 /‘jﬂ}j‘@ . gy 6812 25883 1491 2306 6872 56210
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE
At 1st July 2008 RZEENE
+A-A 2,003 6,190 25,372 1,422 809 6,413 42,209
Charge for the year FEHE 353 175 425 2 461 144 1,584
Transfer to non-current BRETHENE
assets held for sale ZERBEE
[Note 9) (B9) (477) - - — - - 477)
Disposals (Note 36) it (HFE36) — - (692) 2) = (83) (777)
At 30th June 2009 jie i
,,,,,,,,,,,, AASTR 189 636 2105 146 120 64T 42530
Net book value BESE
At 30th June 2009 jime ik
~A=TH 9,968 447 778 45 1,035 398 12,671
The carrying amount of buildings of the Group is AEBEZEFEREMES AT
analyzed as follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEFENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST
Held in Hong Kong on: ERBFR
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10E50F B E 7,409 7,608
Held outside Hong Kong on: EEBUAINGEA ¢
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10=50F B E 2,303 2,360

ETFERERERAA —Z—ZFFH 10]
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8

Investment properties 8 REWE
2010 2009
—E-=EF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Beginning of the year F4 350 23,170
Change in fair value NEEZE 50 (5,820)

Transfer to non-current assets held HREERELEZ

for sale (Note 9) SEMEN A = (M 5E9) - (17,000)
End of the year FIR 400 350

The carrying amount of investment properties of the

Group is analyzed as follows:

AEBZREMEFRBEINDT -

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZTENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Held in Hong Kong: ERBFR
On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 10ZE50F R FHIH S 400 350

All investment properties were revalued at 30th June
2010 by an independent, professionally qualified valuer,
Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited, a member of the

Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors engaged by the Group.

Valuations were based on current prices in an active

market.

BREMEN _Z—Z2F A=1+BZ
NHECHAKERR—HAEXRERZ
B EHEE  ERENAMITERARF

(REBHEMBEr88

JVEHES, o ff

BRI RM S RITRERERME
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10

Non-current assets held for sale

On 30th April 2009, Universe Property Investment
Limited (“UPI"), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a provisional sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party
whereby UPI sold the following properties (the
"Properties”) and since then, the Properties have been
presented as non-current assets held for sale in the
consolidated balance sheet of the Group in accordance
with HKFRS 5.

The formal agreement was signed on 15th May 2009
and the transaction was completed on 15th September
2009.

The details of the Properties are as follows:

Properties

ERYES

A B 5 R I AR

W H

9

Consideration

FIEHEZERBEE

RZZZNFMNA=1TH  BEFWERE
BRAR([BFHE]) (KRrmz—HMHE
BER2EMBAR) B—RBYF =151
—REEERS - Bl ETVELE
THME(TZWE]D) B ERFHSR - %Y
XERBEVEEESRARFELE 2
MBEENARBZGEEERBRAZ
5]

FABBER _FZEAFRAATHER
B MEERSZER-_ZZENAFAATEH
B 5ERK

TMEZEBOT -

Completion date

RE A& B8

17th Floor, Wyler Centre, Phase I,
192-200 Tai Lin Pai Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories,

Hong Kong

BB RZOBANEYE192F 20058
BRPOLE_BH+LE

On 15th September 2009, the transaction was
completed and a net gain on disposal of approximately
HK$4,355,000 has been credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
30th June 2010.

HK$28,000,000
75 %28,000,0007T

15th September 2009
“EFAFNATESA

HERXRSGERZZTNFNA+THATR
M &S EE A Y & A1) jSHRE 4 4 5 4,355,000
TEFABE-ZT—TFA=THZKE
AEEBERA °

Other intangible asset 10 HEEEE
Club membership
28
HK$'000
Group REE ST
Cost and net book value A R AR DR (E
At 30th June 2010 and RZZE—ZEFA=F+HK
1st July 2009 —ETNFEA—H 1,408

EFERERERAR —T-TFF
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11 Film rights and films in progress 11 EXHRERBIEFZEE

Film Films in
rights progress Total
FEF
AT ZEY Fokl
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Group REH BETT BYTT BT T
Cost DN
At 1st July 2009 R-ZEZNF+HB—H 566,199 128,174 694,373
Additions HIR 8,714 59,376 68,090
Transfers % 95,842 (95,842) -
Write-off of expired film rights 21| RS 52 A e 2 i 8 (42,745) - (42,745)
At 30th June 2010 R-E—ZFA=T1H 628,010 91,708 719,718
Accumulated amortization and RETEHEK
impairment A
At 1st July 2009 RZEZNF+A—H 551,425 - 551,425
Amortization for the year FEHH 79,942 - 79,942
Impairment losses REEE 5,097 = 5,097
Write-off of expired film rights BB oM e 2 M S (42,745) - (42,745)
At 30th June 2010 RZE—ZF-A=+H 593,719 - 593,719
Net book value EEFE
At 30th June 2010 RZE—ZF A=+H 34,291 91,708 125,999
At 30th June 2009 RZBZENFAA=FH 14,774 128,174 142,948
Amortization of approximately HK$79,942,000 B IS E477%5 79,942,000 (ZEF N
(2009: HK$44,151,000) is included in the cost of revenue F : B%44,151,0007T) E BREELRE R
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive H SR 2 WA A o
income.
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1"

12

Film rights and films in progress

1M1 EXHREREERZEF

(Continued) (%)
Film Films in
rights progress Tota
e
BRRIE ZEE Fekr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Group rEE BT T BT T BETIT
Cost DN
At 1st July 2008 RZTENFLA—H 604,386 53,354 657,740
Additions N 5,449 86,401 91,850
Transfers LB 11,581 (11,581) —
Write-off of expired film rights 2| 5 E 2 him e 2 M 3 (55,217) - (55,217)
At 30th June 2009 RZZEZENERNA=1H 566,199 128,174 694,373
Accumulated amortization and 2ETEHER
impairment E
At 1st July 2008 RZZENFLA—H 558,793 — 558,793
Amortization for the year F S 5 44,151 — 44,151
Impairment losses BEEE 3,652 — 3,552
Write-off of expired film rights B ERE MR A 2 B S (55,071) — (55,071)
At 30th June 2009 RZZEZENERA=1H 551,425 — 551,425
Net book value FEFE
At 30th June 2009 RZZEZENEASA=1H 14,774 128,174 142,948
Investments in subsidiaries 12 MBARKRE
Company
RAF
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T S EE T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRRD - BAAARE 70,606 70,606

EFERERERAR —F

TEEFE

i
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12 Investments in subsidiaries

(Continued)

The following is a list of the subsidiaries as at 30th June

12 fEBATIRE »

RTER-_F—FFA=tEZHBR

2010. BIBE -
Place of
incorporation Particulars
and kind of of issued Percentage of equity Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital held by the Company place of operation
AR L b B 2R ENENiiES E3:3 3
28 REEBERER RARE RABDL REXHE
Direct Indirect
E# Bt
*Universe Films British Virgin Ordinary US$100 100 — Investment holding in
(Holdings) Limited Islands, limited Hong Kong
liability company
EBRAHS LRRBEAI10EXT 100 — REBR  BE
BREFAR
Universe Laser & Hong Kong, limited Ordinary — 100 Distribution of films in various
Video Co. Limited liability company HK$1,000,000 videogram formats in
Hong Kong
STRIGYARLT  BE AREARE  EBRRRA - 100 WARSEHABTEY -
#1%1,000,0007T &b
Universe Films Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Sub-licensing of film rights
Distribution liability company and film exhibition in
Company Limited Hong Kong
ETYRENARRAE  BE BREEAR  ERRRAREIT - 100 EREVREREY B BE
*Unique Model Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 — 100 Model agency in Hong Kong
liability company
B8 BREARR  EBRRABEBI0T  — 100 BRERE &4
Universe Digital Hong Kong, limited Ordinary — 100 Distribution of films in various
Entertainment Limited liability company HK$10,000 videogram formats in
5% deferred Hong Kong
HK$10,000
ETUBREARDAR  BE AREARE  LRRRX - 100 WARSEHABTEY -
7%10,0007 &b
D% LR A
75%10,0007
R No registered Chinese names for these companies. * IR B A R A S E A o
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12 Investments in subsidiaries

A7 A B R B RE

12 MBATRE @

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation Particulars
and kind of of issued Percentage of equity Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital held by the Company place of operation
A 3L 3 B BRfT KRR ik EX:3 3
£ REERRER RABE REAEDW REXHE
Direct Indirect
E& GE3
Universe Management Hong Kong, limited Ordinary — 100 Provision of management
Services Limited liability company HK$10,000 services for the Group in
5% deferred Hong Kong
HK$10,000
EPOLERARAT B4 AREMRA  EBREA — 100 AASBREEREY &%
7% 10,0007T
SRR RRA
75%10,0007T
Universe Entertainment British Virgin Ordinary US$2 — 100 Investment in film production
Limited Islands, limited and licensing of film rights in
liability company Hong Kong
ETREBRAA ABRAES LRRRA2ET - 100 REEFHERRN
EREEAT TYE B4
*Universe Pictures British Virgin Ordinary US$2 — 100 Film acquisition agent for
International Limited Islands, limited the Group in Hong Kong
liability company
ABRAES LRRRA2ET - 100 AEEZYRWERE B8
BREFAH
Universe Property Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Properties holding and rental
Investment Limited liability company in Hong Kong
ETNEREAR AT A BREEAR LRRRAEG 2T - 100 RERLENE  BE
Universe (China) Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Investment holding in
Development Limited liability company Hong Kong and investment
in television series
production in the
People’s Republic of China
EF(PE)BRERAA &% AREALRA LRRRARR T - 100 REER - BERRERFE
BEEE PEARLNE
@ No registered Chinese names for these companies. * WERARIW EAMPCETE -

ETFERERERAR —Z—2FFH 10/
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12 fEBATIRE »

12 Investments in subsidiaries

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation Particulars
and kind of of issued Percentage of equity Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital held by the Company place of operation
EMAL Y 2R KRR TEEY
£ REERRER RABE RABS REXHE
Direct Indirect
Ef E3
* Globalink Advertising Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Advertising agent for
Limited liability company the Group in Hong Kong
BE AREALRA LRRBEAEE2T - 100 AEEEERE  BA
Century Creator Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Investment in film
Company Limited liability company production in Hong Kong
Bl EEARAR &8 AREELA LRRRARL 2T - 100 REEYAME BE
Matrix Productions Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Investment in film
Company Limited liability company production in Hong Kong
URRERRAA & ARAERA LRk EE2T — 100 REBZAE  BE
Digital Programme Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Production of infotainment
Production Limited liability company programme in Hong Kong
BESARERRAA &8 AREELA LRRRARL 2T - 100 REREENLE BB
Universe International Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Purchasing agent for
Technology Limited liability company the Group in Hong Kong
ETERRRAR AT B AREALRA LaRBEAEE2T - 100 AEEZRBRE BB
Universe Artiste Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10 — 100 Management of contracted
Management Limited liability company artistes in Hong Kong
ETEAERERAT &8 AREELA LRERRARK 0T - 100 ERANEA  TH
*Films Station Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Film production in Hong Kong
Production Limited liability company
B AREALRA LaRBEAEE2T - 100 VR B
Universe Music Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Licensing and sublicensing
liability company of music programme in
Hong Kong
ETFERERAA & ARAERA LRk EE2T - 100 RMRERELEHE RE
B
R No registered Chinese names for these companies. * IR B A R A S E A o
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12

Investments in subsidiaries

A7 A B R B RE

12 MBATRE @

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation Particulars
and kind of of issued Percentage of equity Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital held by the Company place of operation
AR 3L 3 B BRfT KRR ik TEEY
£ REEEEER RABE =R REXHE
Direct Indirect
B GE3
Universe Information & Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Inactive
Entertainment Limited liability company
RFERARERAA &8 AREELA LRRRARL 2T - 100 ghex
Universe Industrial Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Inactive
Development Limited liability company
EFIXERARAR & AREALR  TARRAERLT - 100 gEEx
Universe Intellectual Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Inactive
Property Limited liability company
ETARERARAR &8 BREARR  ERRRNE%T - 100 IEEx
Joy Talent Investment Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1 — 100 Property holding in the
Limited liability company People’s Republic of China
EEREFRAA & BREELA LRRRARK T - 100 WERE  PEARLNE
*Universe Films Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Sublicensing of film
Acquisition Limited liability company rights in Hong Kong
B AREMALA LRRRARL 2T - 100 BRETME BE
Mutual Faith Investment Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 — 100 Property development
Limited liability company in Hong Kong
LEREERAT &8 AREERA LRERRAEE 100 - 100 WEER BE
Elite Master Holdings Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1,000 — 100 Inactive
Limited liability company
FEEBFRAA &8 BREELA LTRERRARK 000 — 100 Rk
@ No registered Chinese names for these companies. * WERARIW EAMPCETE -
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13 Available-for-sale financial asset 13 AIEHENEMEE

Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZTThEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Beginning of the year F4 - —
Additions R 1,275 —
End of the year FIR 1,275 —
Unlisted investment JEEMIRE
Equity securities BEnEH 1,275 —
Available-for-sale financial asset is denominated in HKS. AEHENSRMEENSITEHE ° IELET
The fair value of unlisted security is based on future FBHFHNAFEZBIEREEGERKAEH
free cash flows attributable to shareholders discounted ZHReMERAERRNEARB@ERE
using a discount rate based on the risk free interest BERRRRENRTE o

rate and the risk premiums attributable to the underlying
investment.
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14 Interest in jointly controlled 14 HEEHEE#EZ

assets

The Group has entered into three jointly controlled asset REEB R = HERIEFIEELTHEAR
arrangements to distribute television series (2009: EBREER (T NG - =18) - A&
three). The Group has participating interests ranging EREAEHEBHEAHC0%ES0% 2
from 60% to 80% in these joint ventures. As at 30th L2 - RZE—ZTFA=1+H ' A&
June 2010, the aggregate amounts of assets and BN BRI IE K R HI B E L B 2 A
liabilities recognized in the consolidated financial F - BERGAEBMERT R RFTEE
statements relating to the Group's interests in these kaEamr :

jointly controlled asset arrangements are as follows:

Group

EE
2010 2009
—E-%F —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T EEE T

Assets BE
Television series rights B EEE RE - 843
Liabilities af&E

Accounts payable FEATBR X 495 370
Deposits received B WG & 21 147
516 517

Group

AEE
2010 2009
—E-=fF —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ke
Revenue g 1,249 1,709
Expenses Z A (843) (1,709)
Loss after income tax MRETEHI£E1E 406 —

ETERERERAA —Z—ZFFH 11
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15 Accounts receivable 15 FEWERR
Group
KEH
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETAEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ke e
Accounts receivable JE U BR 3R 12,551 6,001
Less: Provision for impairment of o EWERR 2
accounts receivable VERIERE L] (237) (236)
Accounts receivable — net V5 e YRR SR 12,314 5,765

The carrying amount of the Group’s accounts receivable

RERE 2 YR 2 BREEIA NI’

was denominated in the following currencies: B :
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
— HK$ — BT 8,194 4,313
— United States dollars (“US$") — X 4,058 1,449
— Renminbi (“RMB") — AR% 2 2
— Australian dollars — BT 60 1
12,314 5,765
The carrying amount of accounts receivable approximates FEMEER Z BREEEE QAT ERE
to their fair values.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance REEH - FERRBN SRS RRAESLE
sheet date is the carrying value of accounts receivable it W R R E A E -

disclosed above.
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15 Accounts receivable (continued) 15 BEUWERF @
As at 30th June 2010, the ageing analysis of the RZZ—FFA=+H  BRERZE
accounts receivable was as follows: BRAOMTT -

Group

AEE
2010 2009
—E-=fF —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Current to 90 days BNEAZ=90H 9,899 4,451
91 days to 180 days 91HZ2180H 1,977 364
Over 180 days 180H A E 438 950
12,314 5,765

Sales of videogram products are with credit terms of 7
days to 60 days. Sales from film exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights are on open account terms.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to
accounts receivable, as the Group has a large number
of customers, and are internationally dispersed.

Movements on the provision for impairment of accounts
receivable are as follows:

HERRERZEERRATEHEOBT
- BYHM  REREREZIREZ H
%X%VJL/(F:EBERK HELT o

FEUSR R BEFHEERR - BAKRE
EEARZEF - BERMERZH -

EMERSR O MERB 2 E2B T :

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T S EE T
At 1st July RntH—H 236 4,834
Provision for receivable impairment JE UL BR 3 2 Rk (B 1 236

Receivables written off during the year FR%I| AR 88 4 @ #Y

as uncollectible JE LS BR S 8 - (4,834)
At 30th June RANA=+H 237 236

The Group has recognized a loss of HK$1,000 (2009:
HK$236,000) for the impairment of its accounts
receivable during the year ended 30th June 2010. During
the year ended 30th June 2010, no provision (2009:
HK$4,834,000) was written off from the allowance
account.

Save as a bank's guarantee of HK$90,000 provided to
the Group by a customer, the Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

BE_Z—ZZFXA=THILFER K
EEBERKERANBERRERBE
1,0007C (ZZZT N4 : #%236,0007T) °

HE—_ZT—ZFA=1THIEFER ' I
EREWNMENREE M (CETAE
75 #4,834,0007T) °

B — & PR B #90,000 LRI TIEIR T AN
EEI - AEB W ESH (TR R IEE
R o
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16 Inventories 16 F&
Group
KEH
2010 2009
—®-®F -TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Raw materials & 1,937 1,942
Finished goods BURK fh 4,429 6,595
6,366 8,637
Less: Provision for slow-moving W BIEEE
inventories B (3,002) (3,514)
3,364 5,023
The cost of inventories recognized as expenses and FERATERFER LI AWK
included in cost of revenue amounted to approximately S EHFLB%6,170,000T (ZEEZH
HK$6,170,000 (2009: HK$7.311,000). F : 7¥7,311,0007T) °
Movements on the provision for impairment of GFEZREREGB 2 EHHT :
inventories are as follows:
Group
KEH
2010 2009
—®-®F -TTNG
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1st July REA—H 3,514 3,059
Provision for inventory impairment GEZRERE 891 455
Inventories written off during the year ER %I A KRGEHE
as unsalable OREA=EEs| (1,403) =
At 30th June W;NA=1+H 3,002 3,514
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17

18

e 5 R BT R

Other bank deposit 17 HMRTER
No other bank deposit was held by the Group as at 30th R-E—TENA=+tBAREEWELM
June 2010. The bank deposit as at 30th June 2009 was RITER - RZEZNFAAA=THZIR
fixed and denominated in Hong Kong dollars; its annual TERETHRAE T AEESEMN  £F
interest rate was 1.1% with original maturity of 181 days. FEHBIAERRIEHREAZ181XK °
Cash and cash equivalents 18 RERBATEEY
Group Company
rEE KA
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —TThEF —E-FF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT T
Cash at bank RITHRE 5,953 13,374 55 80
Cash in hand FHEES 63 167 - —
Short-term bank deposits ~ /EHISR 1T 14,312 51,303 - —
120,328 64,844 55 80
Maximum exposure to EERBRD
credit risk S AE 120,265 64,677 55 80
Denominated in: AR5 EESIE
— HK$ — BT 120,084 64,507 55 80
— Canadian $ — 7T 148 135 - —
— Thai Baht — Rk 23 22 - —
— US$ — X% 21 21 - —
— RMB — AR¥ 15 126 - —
— Other currencies — Hipp g 37 33 - —
120,328 64,844 55 80

The effective annual interest rate on short-term bank
deposits is ranged from 0.35% to 1.02% (2009: ranged
from 0.01% to 0.55%); these deposits have an average

original maturities of 47 days (2009: 48 days).

RHRTERNERFEFNEAB0.35E
Z1.02E(ZZZTNF : H0.01EZE
0.55[F) : EFFFHRINEHAAB A
ATR(ZZZTNF : 48K)
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07 N =)

19 Share capital 19 R
Number of Issued and
ordinary shares fully paid
21T
TEREE REHHE
HK$'000
BT T
At 30th June 2010 RZE—ZFA=+H
and 30th June 2009 R_FZEN A=+AH 1,624,605,370 32,492
The total authorized number of ordinary shares is 5,000 BT R ETE 1 E 4258 45,000,000,000
million shares (2009: 5,000 million shares) with a par f% (ZZ=Z A4 : 5,000,000,0000%) @ &
value of HK$0.02 per share (2009: HK$0.02 per share). AR E{E &S E0.027T (ZEENSE - K
All issued shares are fully paid. HEB®0.027T) - FIBEEEHITRHHEE
EHHE -
20 Share options 20 FERRFE

Pursuant to a resolution passed in the annual general
meeting held on 26th November 2003, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 23rd November 2007 (the
“2007 AGM"), the Company approved the refreshment
of the scheme mandate limit, which is 10% of the total
number of issue shares of the Company as at the date
of the 2007 AGM, under the Scheme. After the
refreshment of the scheme mandate limit, the total
number of share options available for issue under the
Scheme as at 30th June 2010 was 162,460,537, the full
exercise of which in subscribing for shares of the
Company would represented 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 30th June 2010.

There was no share options outstanding and granted
throughout the year ended 30th June 2010.

BRER_ZZ=F+—F_tRASRTZ
BRFBFAS LERFEB —HERRE
£ ARBARBEEBHARZMERATE
& 75 AR RIB IR HLE MR — RE AR
st ([RE AR &) -

BER-_ZEZ+F+—HAZT=BH172
RERBAFEFRg ([ZZEZLFRFEFK
gl) @by —EERABRR  AAFH
BRI ST BIE REt 254 EIR - A
“EEHFRRBFRAEE B 2EETR
DB Z10% - REFFHEIRELR 2
% NZEBE-—ZEFXA=THZBEER
BHEAEETERELHE R
162,460,537f7 ' % EEZEITERBER
ARG 7 BREEER _Z—ZF A
ZTHARRZEEITRMNZ10% °

BE_Z—ZTFNA=THILFER #
BERITRERE L Z BRE -
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21 Share premium and other 21 R BRERHEMGERE
reserves
(a) Group (a) AE&EE
Reserve Share-based
Share arisingon  Revaluation compensation
premium  consolidation reserve reserve Total
GRKA
R ity ] EfiRE ROBNGEE a5

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI

At 1st July 2009 RZEENELA-R 121211 821 458 - 128,490
Revaluation reserve adjustment ~ HER{EHE
upon disposal of non-current LERBEE
assets held for sale LEMmEERR - - (458) - (458)
At 30th June 2010 RZ2-2£XA=1H 127211 821 - - 128,032
Reserve Share-based
Share arising on Revaluation  compensation
premium  consolidation reserve reserve Total
a%A
Rih B FiGhE EfifE  ROBMER e%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT BETT BB BETT
At Tst July 2008 RZEEN\E+A-H 127211 821 458 18,554 147044
Share-based compensation reserve  BREZHEL
transfer upon cancellation of LR RM
share options e - - - (18,554) (18,554)
At 30th June 2009 RZZENFAR=TH 127211 821 458 - 128,490

ETFERERERAR —Z—2FFK 11/
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21 Share premium and other 21 RO =aERAEMEE @
reserves (Continued)
(b) Company (b) ZA&ARF
Share-based
Share Contributed  compensation
premium surplus reserve Total
R EE BEARR ROBMER By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BRI BRI BRI BT
At 30th June 2010 and RZZ-ZE A=ZTAK
1st July 2009 “EENELA-A 127211 51,852 - 179,063
Share-based
Share Contributed ~ compensation
premium surplus reserve Total
KA EE EgEn  ROBMEE 2y
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT
At 1st July 2008 RZEZNFLA—A 127211 51,852 18,554 197617
Share-based compensation ~ EREFHEL
reserve transfer upon a3
cancellation of share options & — — (18,554) (18,554)
At 30th June 2009 RZZZNERA=TH 12721 51,852 - 179,063

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange for the issued shares of Universe Films
(Holdings) Limited and the value of net assets of
the underlying subsidiaries acquired on 28th June
1999. Under the Companies Act of 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus
shall not be distributed to the shareholders if
there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(ii) the realizable value of the Company's
assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium
accounts.

At Group level, the contributed surplus is
reclassified into its components of reserves of
the underlying subsidiaries.

ARAREBERBERTIAR R R R
Universe Films (Holdings) Limited
ZEEITROMBITARARIRMDZ
HESER—ANNFEASAZTNAR
FrERB AR EEFEZE
o REBEARE-NN—FRAE
(&3] - BREBAEBABEREEEHR
THER - AIBEBHRTEHIKT
e

() ARAFEHHRIRMEE
HEEIHZEE X

(i) ARBZBEERREEE
SRIRNMEEEREE
B2 2 B AT RN R 40 i (B
fRomafE -

RAKEMS - EMBHREHNIIA
BB AR 2 #E -
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22 Amounts due from/(to) 22 FEW/ () B AT RER
subsidiaries and the ultimate WA TFE

holding company

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and FIR KB AEER - 2 B RARERKFE
repayable on demand. All balances are denominated in B TARRE NS TAGE B EE
Hong Kong dollars and approximate to their fair values. EBRAFEES -
=+
23 Accounts payable 23 BERERM
The carrying amount of the Group's accounts payable AEB 7 ERNRR REESELATER
approximates to their fair values and was denominated BWAB T AEESM -

in the Hong Kong dollars.

As at 30th June 2010, the ageing analysis of the RZZE—FFA=+H  BHERRZE
accounts payable was as follows: BOMMT :
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-=EF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current to 90 days BNEfZ90H 1,075 251
91 days to 180 days 91H=180H 45 1,943
Over 180 days 180H M E 2,014 1,632
3,134 3,826

EFERERERAR —T-TFF

i
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24 Obligations under finance leases 24 FEEHEHRIE

As at 30th June 2010, the Group's obligations under N-EB—=FXA=+0 A&EEZ@HE
finance leases were repayable as follows: FAEREANRMUATESRREANES
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Within one year —FR 80 80
In the second year F_F 71 80
In the third to fifth year E=ZEFERF - 71
151 231
Future finance charges on obligations & & fH &4 ¥E
under finance leases ZARRBE T - —
Present value of obligations under b & EAE
finance leases ZHE 151 231
The present value of obligations under finance leases REMEREZHENAT :

was as follows:

Group

AEE
2010 2009
—E-=fF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B IT
Within one year —F RN 80 80
In the second year F_F 71 80
In the third to fifth year E=FEFRF - 71
151 231
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25 Other long-term liabilities 25 HitRHIEE
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—g-8F -—TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Obligations under finance leases BhE A IE
(Note 24) (P 5% 24) 71 151
26 Deferred income tax 26 EILEFTEM
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset EEEEARNTENRREFIREEMAR
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current EMBAEERE  BEREMEHEY RE—
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the WA - BRI RS EERE A E
deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. EiRESE - R EERBREIIH 22
The amounts shown in the consolidated balance sheet BEREENEIEEMEE °

are determined after appropriate offset.

Group Company
N N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —TTNE —E-ZF —ITNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Deferred income tax assets:  EEFTEREE -
— Deferred tax assets — BBR12EAZKE
to be recovered after HECH BEE
more than 12 months (73) (165) - —
— Deferred tax assets — E12{8 A R4k E
to be recovered MEERBEE
within 12 months (867) (2,388) (321) (348)
(940) (2,553) (321) (348)
Deferred income tax liabilities; ELEFTEHELRE :
— Deferred tax liabilities — BBA12EABKE
to be recovered after MELHIEEE
more than 12 months 884 133 - —
— Deferred tax liabilities — &E128 A A% E
to be recovered MELHIEEE
within 12 months - 2,174 - —
884 2,307 - =
Deferred tax assets (net) EEHBEEE (38) (56) (246) (321) (348)
ETHBRERERAE —Z—ZFFH 12]
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26 Deferred income tax (continued) 26

The movements of the deferred income tax assets (net)
during the year are as follows:

ELEMEHR @

FRRELEMEREE OF8B) 2EFT -

Group Company
PN PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—Z-Zf ZETNE —Z-Zf ZETHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT BETT
Beginning of the year 3] (246) (1,385) (348) (311)
Deferred income tax Riga2EBREA
charged/(credited) to e/ (EH) 2
consolidated statement BEFED
of comprehensive income (Fi7E32)
(Note 32) 281 1,139 27 (37)
Deferred income tax HERELE
adjustment upon disposal LERBEE
of non-current assets ZIEEFEH
held for sale RE (91) = - —
End of the year FR8 (56) (246) (321) (348)

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realization of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profit is
probable. The Group has unrecognized tax losses of
HK$72,103,000 (2009: HK$42,279,000) to carry forward
against future taxable income. The tax losses have no
expiry dates.

ERFEHEE R EHEBHE M B
3B R 2R AR g M B2 3R T kP A 88 2 IR
ERIEHER - ARBHRERVIREIRE
#72,103,000C (ZZEZTNEF : B
42,279,0007T) A #% #5 LA 1 35 K 2R FE ER UL
A o b BIREEY EBHA -
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ELEMEHR @

FREEHEREERAE 2 EE) (RF
—EBiH Rz AR E AT T

26 Deferred income tax (continued) 26

The movements of deferred income tax assets and
liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same
taxation jurisdiction) during the year are as follows:

Group RE
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFRESHREE
Accelerated tax
depreciation and total
MEHRIBRERERE
2010 2009
—E-=fF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T TS IT
Beginning of the year F9 3,102 4,097
Credited to consolidated statement of R4RA EEUZFERA
comprehensive income A (2,127) (995)
Credited to retained earnings upon HERELE
disposal of non-current assets ZIERBEER
held for sale FFARBEFA (91) =
End of the year FIR 884 3,102
Deferred income tax assets EBERBHERE
Tax losses and total
HEEERASE
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST
Beginning of the year F1 (3,348) (5,482)
Charged to consolidated statement of R4RA&ZE KRN
comprehensive income k& 2,408 2,134
End of the year FIR (940) (3,348)
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A T 25 i R B

07 N =)

26 Deferred income tax (continved) 26 EEFTEB @
Company PN/
Deferred income tax assets EEFRSHEE
Tax losses and total
HEGBERAHE
2010 2009
—E-ZEF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Beginning of the year F4 (348) (311)
Charged/(credited) to statement of REEWERANR/
comprehensive income FFA) 27 (37)
End of the year FR (321) (348)
Expenses by nature 27 EMESEZER
Expenses included in cost of revenue, selling expenses, PIFEIRERZAS - SHEEMA - THREARR
administrative expenses and other operating expenses, HEEEAANNERALTET :
are analyzed as follows:
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZEF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Amortization of film rights (Note 11) B 2 #5E (I=E11) 79,942 44,151
Amortization of leasehold land (Note 6) 72 & £ 3 7 # & (Fff 5£6) 252 293
Depreciation of owned assets (Note 7) BE&ZEZIE (KizE7) 1,363 1,500
Depreciation of leased assets (Note 7) FE&ZEZ I E (KisE7) 79 84
Impairment losses of film rights BRRE 2 REBE
(Note 11) (BzE11) 5,097 3,552
Impairment losses of film deposits B 2 REEIE - 60
Provision for impairment of accounts & U BR 3 2 Rl (B B s
receivable 1 236
Provision for slow-moving inventories Y517 & ~ B 891 455
Write-off of expired film rights EIHAE 52 A b 2 il sH — 146
Write-off of inventories T8 2 #MsE 542 21
Employee benefits expenses (Note 28) & B 18 FIF 32 (7£28) 19,898 18,569
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 6,170 7.311
Advertising costs EEKAR 1,282 1,178
Direct operating expenses arising from E4 4 WA
investment properties that generate "EMED
rental income BERZEEER 14 105
Auditor’s remuneration % B A B 780 733
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28

A7 A B R B RE

Employee benefits expenses 28 EERAMAX
On 1st December 2000, a Mandatory Provident Fund RZZEZEZTF+-_A—H  ARFRIEARE
scheme (“the MPF scheme") was set up for employees, B (BIEHITESR) I — it R ES
including the executive directors. Under the MPF scheme, sTEl ([afEestall) - BiBAERTE -
the Group's contributions are at 5% of employees' relevant AEE 2 HRBEIZREE ZEBRA (EE
income as defined in the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident RAEBRGMEATESTEER) 5%FTE -
Fund Schemes Ordinance up to a maximum of HK$1,000 BXEESRAZHAKERAEK1,000
per employee per month. The employees also contribute o WEEBR=ZZEZE=F_A—HZA2
a corresponding amount to the MPF scheme if their BRWAT AERBEL000TT KRR
relevant income is more than HK$4,000 per month before T=F_A—BzBZBAKAETHBR
1st February 2003 and HK$5,000 after 1st February 2003. 755,000t © JN/E R RIE S FTEI1EH AR
The MPF contributions are fully and immediately vested FEE B 2 fk - BB e R AR - 2
in the employees as accrued benefits once they are paid. TEMIKEEBRES ZR5HEH -
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Wages and salaries T & K % o 16,590 15,727
Provision for unutilized annual leaves  KRENHFERZ BEE 77 =
Written back of provision for unutilized RE)FHFERZ
annual leaves P 1 [0 43 - (256)
Provision for long service payments RHIRS € 2 B 143 116
Staff welfare BTER
— Operating lease payments for —EEEEL
directors’ quarters LEHENR 1,903 1,826
— Others — Hfth 767 759
Pension costs S UNS AN
— defined contribution plan — R EHRETE 418 397
Total (including directors’ emoluments) # % (BiEESH<) 19,898 18,569

ETEARRREARAT —F
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28 Employee benefits expenses 28 EERABEXZ @
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and senior (a) EBELREREBAEZ
management’s emoluments [k
The remuneration of each director for the year BHE_Z—ZFA=1THLTF
ended 30th June 2010 is set out below: B SESEHNFTMHAT
Salary,
housing Employer’s
allowances, contribution
and benefits to retirement
Fees in kind scheme Total
¢ REE ERETE
Name of directors BEEng we ZERENFEZ EE MM @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil NS A 2,481 704 12 3,197
Ms Chiu Suet Ying HERL T 1,985 1,200 12 3,197
Mr Yeung Kim Piu BRIELE 579 — 12 591
Mr Ng Kwok Tung mEREE 100 - - 100
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert RIEET 100 — — 100
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace BiRig Lt 100 = — 100
The remuneration of each director for the year HE_ZTZTNFSA=THLSF
ended 30th June 2009 is set out below: B SESHNHFMOT
Salary,
housing Employer’s
allowances, contribution
and benefits to retirement
Fees in kind scheme Total
¢ EE ERETE
Name of directors EEnF He RREREYFZ =EXEE “aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BETT BETT
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil W EE — 3,129 12 3,141
Ms Chiu Suet Ying EERZ T — 3,129 12 3,141
Mr Yeung Kim Piu BRIZELE - 593 12 605
Mr Ng Kwok Tung HEREE 12 — — 112
Mr Chiu Shin Koi @ HEREE 61 — — 61
Mr Ma Ting Hung B ED 53 - - 53
Dr Leung Shiu Ki, Albert IR L0 51 — — 51
Mr Ma Chun Fung, Horace ' BiRIELAD 51 — — 51
(i) These directors retired on 28th November 2008 (i) REEEHE_TENEF+—A
and the remuneration shown above represented ZHN\BRER 7R & B
their remuneration received up to the date of SREEEHEREEBHAE
retirement. B Er B o
(ii) These directors were appointed on 28th (ii) DEEENR_TENE+—A8
November 2008 and the remuneration shown ZTNBEZER EMETH
above represented their remuneration received MeRRESHEEE BERT
since the date of appointment. SEE
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28 Employee benefits expenses 28 EERAMBZ @
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and senior (a) EERSREEAEZ
management’s emoluments M <
Directors’ fees disclosed above include FiEERSREEN FEIIEHN
HK$300,000 (2009: HK$328,000) paid to the 1TEE 2258 %300,0007T (=
independent non-executive directors. T NF ¢ B1%328,0007T) °
No directors waived emoluments in respect of MEESERENDNEE_Z—TF
the year ended 30th June 2010 (2009: same). NA=ZTHLEFEZHME (2T
NE - MR o
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEESHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the RERNAEERERSHTALTEE
highest in the Group for the year included three —H(CEENE  ZRES R’
directors (2009: three) whose emoluments are F7MEFIBER LERHEE - B
reflected in the analysis presented above. The MG (ZEZNE : MB) ATRE
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2009: NZENMEIT :
two) individuals during the year are as follows:
Group
rERE
2010 2009
—E-=EF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ke
Basic salaries, housing allowances, EXREe  BEEL -
other allowances and benefits in kind ~ H #0285 & &Y F| 75 1,560 1,652
Contributions to retirement scheme RORETEI K 24 24
1,584 1,576
The emoluments fell within the following bands: I EH AT THEEHBEA :
2010 2009
—E-=EF —EENF
Emolument bands (in HK dollars) e E 5or)
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T EHE#1,000,0007T 2 2
HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000 7B #2 000,000 E
75 2,500,0007T - —
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 7B#2,6500,001 L2
75 #3,000,0007C — =
2 2

ETFERERERAR —Z—2FFK 12/
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29 Other income 29 Hfl A
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZTThEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Sponsorship income FRHENE W 910 782
Screening income el A 115 194
1,025 976
30 Other gains — net 30 Hitliz: — FE
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTThEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Deposits and payables forfeited RIET & R IE R 2,371 187
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME - #ER
plant and equipment HtE oz (B518) /&7 (332) 2
Net foreign exchange losses [ 518K )F 58 (180) (254)
Compensation received from BIEEH
termination of agreement Z BB A 1,292 —
Gain on acquisition of an available-forsale U # Al f# 1 &t & gl & &
financial asset U 1,275 —
Others HAth 166 220
4,592 155
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31 Finance income 31 BBEWA
Group
rEME
2010 2009
—E-=fF —ZTThEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest income FEWA 288 2,675
A
32 Income tax expense 32 FSHEH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BBEFEHRDIRBRAEE 2 fhEt FEERTT
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit BFATRE165% (ZZTZF : 16.5%)
for the year. R EE -
The amount of income tax expense charged to the FrSHiBRARNGE 2ARERATIE &
consolidated statement of comprehensive income B ¢
represents:
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong profits tax BEMER
Current year KEE 119 86
Overprovision for previous years BEFEBRRERE - (18)
Deferred income tax (Note 26) EIEFTISH (MY5E26) 281 1,139
400 1,207
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EHRER»

The tax on the Group's loss before income tax differs AEBFERATETAIEEATEIE - EHERA
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the A B A B & F|E B A b 35 B K i
FEEAZIEMFBEREBMT

32 Income tax expense (Continued) 32

weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the

consolidated subsidiaries as follows:

2010 2009
—E-EfF ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Loss before income tax KR P15 Bt R ES 18 (14,359) (8,498)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates EEAHEBEIRHNRAF
applicable to profits in the RER R E &
respective countries FTERTIE (2,369) (1,402)
Income not subject to taxation EARBLZ WA (613) (641)
Expenses not deductible for taxation A #1F 2
purpose &M 374 215
Overprovision for previous years BEFEBREEE - (18)
Utilization of unrecognized tax losses AR IR G R 2 FIBE B (312) =
Reversal of taxable temporary AR TR ER
differences =] 3% (1,913) =
Tax losses not recognized RIER 2 THIBE B 5,233 3,053
Income tax expense St & A 400 1,207

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 16.5%

IHEFIER 2 MER16.5% (ZFTFN

(2009: 16.5%). F :16.5%) °
33 Net foreign exchange losses 33 ERBXFH
The exchange differences recognized in the consolidated Eire 2ERERNERE L ZBaE
statement of comprehensive income are included as T3ER :
follows:
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Other gains — net Hibizs — F5E 179 254
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- - = e -
34 Loss attributable to equity 3 XREERFEAEBES
holders of the Company B
The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company AR AERRE AELBBERR IS
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company WK P BR IR B EURR s ) 49 2% 7585 136,000
to the extent of a profit of approximately HK$136,000 T (ZZETNF : YEEB%228,000
(2009: loss of approximately HK$228,000). JT) °
= ==
35 Loss per share 35 BRERE
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss BRENEEBIBEANRAE=THE AN
attributable to equity holders of the Company over the B8 - BRIAGF B TS mARAY hiiE 1T
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue HEFE
during the year.
2010 2009
—E-EfF —ZEENF
Loss attributable to equity holders AAEIERRFA A
of the Company (HK$'000) EEER (B T ) (14,759) (9,705)
Weighted average number of ordinary B 377 & BATH)
shares in issue It T 19 2 1,624,605,370 1,624,605,370
Basic loss per share R R EE
(HK cent per share) (TR L) (0.91) (0.60)
The basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended AFALESAITETEEELE TR
30th June 2010 are the same as there was no dilutive f% kB E—E—FF A A=THIF
potential ordinary share outstanding during the year. ERzEREARNEEERAER -
The basic and fully diluted loss per share for the year BARNBREBREANME MARITELER
ended 30th June 2009 are the same because the effect BETE EBRRAEREE FE W
of the assumed conversion of all dilutive potential HHE—ZEZAFNAZTHIEFERZ
ordinary shares outstanding during the year was anti- SREAREZEEESHEAEER -
dilutive.
ETHBRERERAE —Z—ZFFH ]3]
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36 Cash generated from operations 36 ZEE4LXHE

2010 2009
—E-EfF ZTENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Loss for the year FEEE (14,759) (9,705)
Adjustment for: FAEIFR
— Income tax expense (Note 32) — SR E R (732 400 1,207
— Depreciation of owned assets — BEBEEZIE 1,363 1,500
— Depreciation of leased assets — HEEEZTE 79 84
— Amortization of leasehold land — & £ b 2 5 252 293
— Amortization of film rights — BRI 2 5 79,942 44,151
— Impairment losses of film rights — BRRECRESE 5,097 3,552
— Write-off of expired film rights — B HAE 72 AR AE 2 5 - 146
— (Increase)/decrease in fair value of — &X&YE 2 AF(E

investment properties (3% 00) [k (50) 5,820
— Write-off of inventories — FEZMH 542 21
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, — HEW¥ -« #zS

plant and equipment Xt BB/ (BA) 332 (2)
— Gain on disposal of non-current — HERIEHEZERDEE

assets held for sale 2 Wiz (4,355) =
— Gain on acquisition of available-forsale — W Al HE & @& E

financial asset 2 Wiz (1,275) —
— Expenses incurred for disposal of ~ — HERHEHEZIERBEE

non-current assets held for sale FREEXZER (300) =
— Interest income — FEWA (288) (2,575)
— Provision for impairment of — BERERZ

accounts receivable DERERE A 1 236
— Impairment losses of film deposits — B 514 2 HIEEIE - 60
— Provision for slow-moving inventories — /#8517 & B & 891 455
Changes in working capital: ZiEECEE
— Inventories —FE 226 312
— Accounts receivable — FEUBR (6,550) 24,249
— Deposits paid, prepayments and —EBEffE&  BARER

other receivables H th & WK I8 (6,685) (2,273)
— Accounts payable — BT ERK (692) (2,088)
— Other payable and accrued charges — HMEMBER L E X H (6,475) 6,527
— Deposits received — BlkET£ (2,335) 4,197
Cash generated from operations EEELECRS 45,361 76,167

1 32 UNIVERSE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %% & B4 %5 i = Bt 53

36 Cash generated from operations 36 EEELBEE @
(Continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds EHREHSRERN  HEWE  #ER
from disposal of property, plant and equipment RE ISR ETE
comprise:
2010 2009
—E-=fF —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST
Property, plant and equipment M- BERSEE
Net book value (Note 7) BREFE (FsE7) 332 1
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE  HEREXR
plant and equipment %t (B 18) /B F (332) 2
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - #BER
plant and equipment B pdiECE - 3
Obligations under finance leases il & SR E
End of the year FHR 151 231
Less: Vo
Beginning of the year F4) 231 261
Inception of finance leases FEImERE - 56
Capital element of finance leases XNREHRE
payments Z BRI (80) (86)
Non-cash transaction FEERH

The principal non-cash transaction is the contribution
of film rights of HK$1,275,000 as consideration for the

ITENRERFBNBE_ZT—ZFR
R=+HIEFERNRHEAER,275,0007T

acquisition of an available-for-sale financial asset for the BEXNEERBBERIELEN EREE
year ended 30th June 2010. ZRAE e
37 Banking facilities 37 RITWME
As at 30th June 2010, no banking facilities was granted R-TE—FENA=1H KNEFWTEE
by bank to the Group (2009: same). BITETIRITRE (CSZEZNF : HA) ©
EFEBRERERAT —Z—ZTFFHK 133
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38 Pending litigations

(a)

1 34 UNIVERSE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010

A court action was commenced in the Court of
First Instance of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region on 17th April 2002 by The
Star Overseas Limited (“Star”), an independent
third party, against Universe Entertainment
Limited ("UEL"), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

By the above action, Star alleges that a sum of
US$935,871.65 (equivalent to HK$7,299,798.84)
was payable by UEL to Star as its share of the
revenue of the movie entitled “Shaolin Soccer”
(the “Movie").

Pursuant to an Order (the “Order”) made by the
High Court on 21st February 2003, the Company
was ordered and had paid to Star a sum of
HK$5,495,699.80, being part of the licence fee of
the Movie received by UEL from Miramax Films
(being the licencee of the Movie) and which was
also part of the sum claimed by Star. Pursuant to
the Order, UEL is also liable to pay Star interest in
the sum of HK$350,905.30 and some of the costs
of the application leading to the making of the Order,
all of which have been settled. As the Order has
not disposed of all the claims of US$935,871.65
(equivalent to HK$7.299,798.84) by Star, UEL is
entitled to continue to defend the claim by Star for
recovering the remaining balance in the sum of
approximately HK$1,804,099.04 (HK$7299,798.84
less HK$5,495,699.80).

7 BB R B R

38 ARIREFA

(a)

R-ZFT_FMOA+LEH - BIYE
=EEEBIERAR (2B Y
ARR—EHEEE2ERBRARET
REFR AR ([BETREDNEE
FAITTIRE RANEERA AR

-

BB FuERAAR IS TIREEE
M H ¥ 4935,871.65% 7t (FHER
75157,299,798.847T) ' {(EANDZ
—WB B DMERR] 2B ([ZE
1) 2 BIDWA o

BEESSS LN T =F=
AZ+—BE#EZE< (=] -
EFREERSREMEBIE
#5,495,699.807T * BB FIRLERE
% EZ M Miramax Films (BNz% &
22 MRABERE A A) WEL 2 B 19 hi i
BREBREZI NS - BIEZ
BS  BEFRENAMERER NS
2878 4350,905.307T 2 F| B & H 5
ZIESHHEDRHER  BEERED
Xff o HRIES W ERREBBH
935,871.65% L (HHER B
7,299,798.8470) ZFT B RE
B TFIRE SR ET 2 BB
N A2 478 1,804,099.047T (B
B 7,299,798.84 7T B HE
5,495,699.807T) 2 SRIBHET I

FY

Fat ©
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38 Pending litigations (continued)

(a)

(Continued)

On 30th April 2002, UEL issued a Writ of
Summons against Star for the latter’'s wrongful
exploitation of certain rights in the Movie co-
owned by both parties. UEL claimed to recover
loss and damages suffered by UEL as a result of
the wrongful exploitation.

On 9th September 2002, Universe Laser & Video
Co. Limited (“ULV"), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, issued a Writ of
Summons against Star for the latter's infringement
of the licensed rights in the Movie held by ULV.
ULV claimed to recover all loss and damages
suffered by ULV as a result of the said infringement.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the claim against UEL.
The Board is of the opinion that the outcome of
the claim against UEL will have no material
financial impact to the Group.

38 RREFFA @)

(a)

RTEBERERAT T S44

(#)

RIZZE_FMOA=1+A  EFR
LrEBRHERSHK  HP i
BRETEHERBNET KR%E
BRZBEP ZETHEN - BFHR
LIVBF A% T E N AR
FRERK 2 — WE%&E%

R=ZTZE=FNANA ' XARZ
—ERE2ENE R R EFHE
TERAR(IEFHE]) AEL1E
RILB TR R E LR REERT
EFmEEZEEEASK - EF8
BIREFE LERTANEX 2
—PIEEBRRIEBE -

ﬂiﬁ%%ﬁﬁiﬁ%?ﬁ;z“ﬁi' B TR
HETRENREZRWBE 2B
$°ﬁﬂ-§$ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ$ﬁ%
MRE 2 BERE T2 EAREBEK
EXMBRE
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38 Pending litigations (continued) 38 RIREFFA @)
(b) On 1st September 2008, Koninklijke Philips by RZZFEZTNFENA-—H

Electronics N.V. (“KPE") issued a Writ of
Summons against among other persons, the
Company, ULV and Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (a
director of the Company), being three of the
defendants named therein, in respect of
damages arising from alleged infringement of the
patents regarding Video Compact Disc owned by
KPE.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the said claim made
against the Company, ULV and Mr Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil. The Board is of the opinion that
the outflow of economic benefits cannot be
reliably estimated and accordingly no provision
for any liability that may result has been made in
the consolidated financial statements.

(c) On 8th January 2010, KPE issued a Writ of (c)

Summons against among other persons, the
Company, ULV and Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
(a director of the Company), being three of the
defendants named therein, in respect of
damages arising from alleged infringement of the
patents regarding Digital Video Disc owned by
KPE.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the said claim made
against the Company, ULV and Mr Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil. The Board is of the opinion that
the outflow of economic benefits cannot be
reliably estimated and accordingly no provision
for any liability that may result has been made in
the consolidated financial statements.

Koninklijke Philips Electronics
N.V.([KPE]) AIBEALRE « BF
EET R NRSEE (KRRl Z—%
) (BARSHRE2EF =2
&) BHABREEBRICKPERMF
ERAR B LR (VCD) M B F M E
EZRBRRZERSHK -

RIBLAZERCER - BEERTEA
HARQE - BEFES I NRELE
M ERREEREBS BT - M
B EE2RRABENKEENTZR
HoRBER SEML A At - R W B AEAR
EMBERERAAEELNEFNE
EIEL A

RZZF—ZF—HA\R ' KPERE
BEARRE - BFEG RMNAEE
(RpRlz—REE) (BaomE
ZER=FZHE)BEEAEER
RILKPEFTFF B BB &S & & S iF
(DVD)H) H AT EE £ 2 Bk 2 F
AR o

REBEEBRZER  REERIER
HARE - EFES R NRELE
M ERREEREBS BT - M
B EE2RRABENKENDR
HoRBER SEML A At - R WBEAR
BUBEMERAAREELNEFNE
EIEH A

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2010, no Br ECFTIEEEIN RZE—ZF A=
litigation or claim of material importance is known to +H - BREBAA - AQ R S E AR B
the directors to be pending against either the Company RNAWEEHERERNFARRE o

or any of its subsidiaries.
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39 Commitments
(a) Operating leases (a)
As at 30th June 2010, the Group had future

aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

39 EIE

REHRE

R-ZE—ZTFA=1H " £5E
BB A EH 2 R EHEMRARK
N Z&ERENRERET :

Group
AEME
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ks i
Land and buildings THIREF
Not later than one year BB —F 957 672
(b) Others (b) HAth
As at 30th June 2010, the Group had RZZE—ZFFA=1+H ' ~5H
commitments contracted but not provided for in EEIRERNGE MBHRERRE 2
these consolidated financial statements as APEWT
follows:
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ks i
Purchase of film rights and BEERER
production of films B RE 39,183 50,361
Note: As at 30th June 2010, the Group had no = R-E—ZFEA=1+H" &K

commitment in respect of jointly controlled
assets (2009: nil).

EFERERERAR —T-TFF

8% B30 A ] A 0 AR (R 422 6 B
ENEE(CETNF : E) o
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40 Future operating lease
arrangements

41

As at 30th June 2010, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating

leases as follows:

40 AREEHEZH

R-E—FERA=TE  AREAUT
TR EREMARA TR B
BEHR

Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-=EF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Not later than one year THA—F - 56
Later than one year and BiE—F &
not later than five years THARF - =
— 56
Related party transactions 41 BEALTZRS

During the year ended 30th June 2010, the Group had
the following significant transactions with related

parties:

(a)

On 19th December 2006, ULV entered into a
tenancy agreement with Rainbow Nice Limited
(“RNL") whereby ULV agreed to lease a premises
(the “Premises”) from RNL for a term of 3 years
commencing from 1st January 2007 for the use
of Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Ms Chiu Suet
Ying, the directors of the Company for residential
purpose, the latter resigned as a director of the
Company on 16th August 2010. The monthly
rental payable by ULV was HK$200,000 which
was inclusive of furniture, fixtures and home
electronic appliances but excluding government
rent, rates, taxes and all other outgoings. The
entire issued share capital of RNL, the landlord
of the Premises, is wholly owned by Ms Chiu
SuetYing.

BE_T-TFAA=THLZFER
AEEEBBEALHEARZNOT :

(@) RIETXRF+_ATIAR BT
B EYZERAR (RE]FIL

MEWZ - Bt - BTHRGRER
FEMER—EE (%EE]) - /Y
=F BTt —A—HBHH
W AN A RS R+
(RARRIZEF) AEEEMRE @ &
ER_T—ZFF/\AtRERER
RAIZER - ETHEFNENZAE
A 7E%200,0007T (BIEHRM -
ENMRESR - BFEFBWH - £
- MENAAERMIL) - ¥E
(EZJ%%Z%?E)ZL:BE%@%HHQ$
HESRZLT2EHEA -
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41 Related party transactions
(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

On 26th August 2008, ULV entered into a
supplemental agreement with RNL whereby both
parties mutually agreed to reduce the monthly
rental of the Premises from HK$200,000 to
HK$100,000 for the remaining term commencing
from 1st September 2008 to 31st December
2009. The Premises was solely leased for Ms
Chiu SuetYing for residential purpose with effect
from 1st September 2008.

On 10th December 2009, Universe Digital
Entertainment Limited (“UDE"), an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a renewed tenancy agreement with
RNL whereby UDE agreed to lease the Premises
from RNL for a term of 3 years commencing from
1st January 2010 for the use of Ms Chiu Suet
Ying for residential purpose. The monthly rental
payable by UDE is HK$100,000 which is inclusive
of furniture, fixtures and home electronic
appliances but excluding government rent, rates,
taxes and all other outgoings.

During the year ended 30th June 2010, ULV and
UDE paid rental of HK$600,000 (2009:
HK$1,400,000) and HK$600,000 (2009: nil)
respectively to RNL on apartment leased for a
director.

41

BEALTZRE @

EFERERERAR —T—

RZZBZENFNAZ+RE  EF

BT SR — DMt - &
It - EHARRERZE S AMER

BEE200,0005C N E B
100,0007C - BT N\FHLH—
HRBESE_TSTNFT=_A=
+—H 1k BIRIBELIERR) - %=
EHIEEN\FNA—ABRIAEA
FHSERZLTATERR -

RZZEZNF+ZA+TAH - AR
—HEE2ENBERARETF %Z
WIREFR AT ([BFH]) B2¥
ZRI — Y EFEE R - Bt
EFHBRERNFEHEHRZES
REA=%F E Z—ZFF—H—H
s - AEES R L AEEER
FEGEN 2 AR ABE
100,0007C (B2FEEM - KRERK
FEER - BT RIEMmA - =6 B
BRAFEMIE)

HE-_ZT—ZTFXA=tALZHF
B BFREFREFHIBZMLE
2 Bl 478 #600,000T (ZZEZ
NF ¢ B¥1,400,0007T) KB #E
600,0007C (ZZZTNF : ) (EA
EEHAZEEEMRAS -
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41 Related party transactions 41 BEALTZRZ ®
(Continued)
(b)  Details of key management compensation b) FEEEERMZFE
Key management personnel are those FEEEABRBENE - BRE
management with responsibility for planning, EHIAEEES 2 EEE °
directing and controlling the activities of the
Group.
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-=EF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other short-term & & E 52 57
employee benefits & Et= 7 8,508 8,404
Employer's contribution to RRETEIZ
retirement scheme fE = #H3K 60 60
8,568 8,464
Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these B ECATH RS RULAR A BRI -
consolidated financial statements, no other material AEBEWETLEMERBAEATR
related party transactions have been entered into by the 5 ZERGB—RBTFEBREAREE
Group. The transactions were carried out after NEAENTERBET
negotiations between the Group and the related parties
in the ordinary course of business.
. . = =
42 Ultimate holding company 42 FRHERER A FE
The directors regard Globalcrest Enterprises Limited, a EERE RARBEXBEEFMKILZ
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as Globalcrest Enterprises Limited &2~ A &)

being the ultimate holding company of the Company. R AT ©
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43

Possible impact of amendments,
new standards and
interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the annual
accounting year ended 30th June
2010

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following
amendments, new standards and interpretations which
are not yet effective for the accounting period ended
30th June 2010 and which have not been adopted in
these consolidated financial statements:

43

EEMEREBEZ_-Z—F
E/\H_'I'EIJJ:ﬁE £
HAR s R AEMAVIERT ~ #
ZARZRENEERE

BENGAVBRROMUWERY - BES
FHEPREERMIATIER] - TR K2R
B BERFER  ENERREREBEC
E-ZEFRNA=THLEEFHHERRE
B MARRUER S BT |RR PR

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

RUTRBRH 2%
HIRNETEEEN
HKFRS (Amended) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 1st January 2010
LR (BETK) B 52281120092 Bt —Z-Z5—-H—H
HKFRS (Amended) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 1st July 2010 and
1st January 2011, as appropriate
R (BT AK) B2 R120102 B —E-TFELA-BK

—T——%—A—HWEH)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

BB AER 15 (BFTK)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
B AE B 25257 (15T A)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

ERELIERLACHES)

HKAS 24 (Revised)
SEPERIE 245 (KIEFT)

Additional Exemptions for First Time
Adoption of HKFRS
BREME 2B R

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transaction

SEURSHEEUARN XM 2R S

Financial Instruments: Presentation Classification
of Rights Issues

SRTE : {HRZ2F08

Related Party Disclosures

BENBRE

ETERERERAA —Z—ZFFH 14

1st January 2010

—2-Z%F—F—H

1st January 2010
—2-Z25—-Hf—H

1st February 2010

1st January 2011
—Z2——%—HA—H
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43 EHMERBE=-Z—F

43 Possible impact of amendments,

new standards and
interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the annual
accounting year ended 30th June
2010 (continued)

FERA=+THLEFES
HAR & R ERBISE] ~ #
ZARZRENEERE
()

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

RUT AR 2%
HRNETEEEN
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1st January 2013
BT AR RIS 95% ERIA —Z2-=%—H—H
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 (Amendment)  Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement 1st January 2011
&5 (BRI BRERE BANREEEEX —E——%—-f—H
Z88) —2REBEE14%
CCHEN)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with 1st July 2010
Equity Instruments
&5 (BRI BHRERE WRATAEESMAR “T-T5+A-H

RE®) —RES19%

Apart from the above, a number of improvements and
minor amendments to HKFRSs have also been issued
by the HKICPA but they are not yet effective for the
accounting year ended 30th June 2010 and have not
been adopted in these consolidated financial
statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments, new
standards and new interpretations would be in the
period of initial application, but not yet in a position to
state whether these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations would have a significant impact on
the Group's results of operations and financial position.

% EXCRRILS) - EBRAEIA G RN T
~FPIRNEREMET 2 LR -
AU RRBE-F-FEAA=TALY
EHERER  RARILBEARBER
5 o

AEBEREFHEZSER] - BRI K2
BREXRBUEKEERNTE - BN
REEREEZFER] - FERIRHRESS
HAKENRE BN BARRNEKEXR

B/ 488
HE o
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Principal Property Held for Investment Purposes
FAE B E M E « E 2=

Hong Kong B
Location Lot number Type Lease term
s B b2 g HEFH
Car park no. 26, 2nd Floor, Kwai Chung Town Industrial 2047
Wyler Centre Phase II, Lot number 130
192 - 200 Tai Lin Pai Road,
Kwai Chung,
New Territories,
Hong Kong
BB A ZBNELE 27T [ 1 B 13057 T —ZTMtF
192%2005%
B O%E 5
ZIBHERIE 265

BETFEBRERERAR —T—ZFFHR 143




Five Year Financial Summary

T AR 55 1 2

Results ¥EE
Year ended 30th June
BEAB=THLEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-2F —TTNF —TITN\F —“ITTLF —ITITRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETIT BETIT BETIT BETT
Revenue g 119,096 89,733 134,174 136,240 93,405
(Loss)/profit & P15 5 Al
before income tax (&) /&7 (14,359) (8,498) (26,070) 6,034 31,989
Income tax FTis#i
(expense)/credit (BR)/m# (400) (1,207) (1,048) 5,492 (4,684)
(Loss)/profit attributable RRAR)ER
to the equity holders A AR
of the Company (B518) 1B 7| (14,759) (9,705) (27.118) 11,526 27,305
Proposed Dividends BRAREBIR S - — — — 14,621
Assets and liabilities EERBE
As at 30th June
RAB=1TH
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-BF —TTAF —TTN\F —TTLF —TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET T BET T BET T BETT
Total assets BEE 325,466 351,020 353,435 366,132 375,450
Total liabilities BEE (44,535) (55,421) (48,131) (52,269) (58,751)
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